
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE 

 
Members of the Voluntary and Community Sector Committee are summoned to a meeting which 
will be held in Committee Room 1 at the Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 25 January 2016 at 
6:00pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Mary Green  

Tel : (020) 7527 3005 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 14 January 2016 

 
 
Membership 2015/16 Substitute Members 
 
Councillor Richard Watts (Chair) Councillor Janet Burgess MBE 
Councillor Andy Hull Councillor Joe Caluori 
Councillor Asima Shaikh Councillor Paul Convery 
 Councillor James Murray 
 Councillor Claudia Webbe 
  
 Observers 
 Councillor Theresa Debono 
 Councillor Rakhia Ismail 
 Councillor Jean-Roger Kaseki 
 (1 vacancy) 
 
Quorum: is 2 Councillors 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.  Declaration of substitute members 
 

 

3.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

  
If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 

 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 
existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak or 
vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the start 
of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 
*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including from 
a trade union. 
(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 
(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 
(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 
(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 
 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of 
that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   
 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

4.  Minutes of the previous meeting 
 

1 - 8 

B.  
 

Matters for decision 
 

 

1.  Local Initiatives Fund awards 
 

9 - 14 

2.  Discretionary rate relief awards 
 

15 - 22 

3.  London Boroughs Grants Committee: levy 2016/17 
 

23 - 24 



 
 
 

C.  
 

Item for information 
 

Page 

1.  Islington Voluntary and Community Sector Partnership grants programme 2016 
- 2020 
 

25 - 58 

D.  
 

Urgent non-exempt matters 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

E.  
 

Exclusion of press and public 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of  Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public during discussion thereof. 

 

F.  
 

Confidential/exempt items (if any) 
 

 

G.  
 

Urgent Exempt Matters 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes 

 

 
 

The next meeting of the Voluntary and Community Sector Committee will be on 22 March 2016



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Voluntary and Community Sector Committee -  15 December 2015 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Voluntary and Community Sector Committee held at the Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  15 December 2015 at 6.05 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Andy Hull, Asima Shaikh and Richard Watts 

   

Also 
present: 

Councillors: Jean-Roger Kaseki (observer) 

 
Councillor Richard Watts in the Chair 

 

63 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1) 
Received from Councillor Rakhia Ismail. 
 

64 DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2) 
None. 
 

65 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A3) 
Councillor Kaseki declared an interest in agenda item B1 (Local Initiatives Fund awards) as 
a trustee of The Laundry. 
 

66 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2015 be confirmed as a correct record 
and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 

67 LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND AWARDS (Item B1) 

A revised Appendix A was laid round. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) That the proposals submitted by Ward Councillors for Local Initiatives Funding 
and detailed in revised Appendix A (attached to these minutes) of the report of the 
Executive Member for Economic and Community Development, be approved in 
principle, subject to the Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and Human 
Resources) being satisfied that the necessary checks have been made and any 
other issues resolved. 
(b) That the amendments to Ward budgets resulting from project funding being 
returned, detailed in revised Appendix A of the report, be also noted. 
 
Reasons for decision  
To address local priorities, which represented a wide range of activity and delivered 
significant benefit to local communities. 
 
Other options considered  
None 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A4



Voluntary and Community Sector Committee -  15 December 2015 
 

2 
 

Conflicts of interest/Any dispensations granted  
None 
 
 

68 ISLINGTON COMMUNITY CHEST: ROUND TWO GRANT AWARDS 2015/16 (Item B2) 

 
RESOLVED: 
(a) That Islington Community Chest second round grant awards for 2015/16 be 
approved to the organisations detailed in Appendix A of the report of the Executive 
Member for Economic and Community Development. 
(b) That officers seek and encourage more groups to apply for awards under the 
category of “Improve people’s mental and/or physical health” 
 
Reasons for decision 
To nurture and sustain an innovative and resilient voluntary and community sector in 
Islington, by providing resources for smaller organisations that find it hard to access 
funding from other programmes. 
 
Other options considered  
None 
 
Conflicts of interest/Any dispensations granted  
None 
 
 

69 ISLINGTON ASSEMBLY HALL: FREE HIRE SCHEME (Item B3) 

 
RESOLVED: 
(a) That the number of free hires of Islington Assembly Hall to local community 
organisations be reduced from 10 to 8 each year. 
(b) That the changes to the application process and criteria, as detailed in 
paragraph 5 of the report of the Executive Member for Economic and Community 
Development, be approved. 
(c) That the changes to the application timetable detailed in paragraph 6 of the 
report be approved. 
 
Reasons for decision  
The scheme of free lettings of the Assembly hall provided an opportunity for the 
Council to support local organisations. 
 
Other options considered  
None 
 
Conflicts of interest/Any dispensations granted  
None 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 6.13 pm 
 
 
CHAIR 

Page 2



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

NEW PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN DECEMBER 2015

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

Barnsbury / 

Bunhill / 

Clerkenwell / 

Finsbury 

Park / 

Highbury 

East / 

Junction / 

Mildmay / St 

Georges / St 

Mary's / 

Tollington

All councillors of 

Barnsbury, 

Highbury East, 

Junction, 

Mildmay and St 

Georges wards / 

Troy Gallagher / 

Raphael Andrews 

/ Michael 

O'Sullivan / 

Nurullah Turan / 

Jean Kaseki

Islington 

Pensioners Forum

Funding to contribute towards annual 

staff costs and printing and postage 

of the monthly newsletter.

January to 

December 

2016 

(newsletter 

from April to 

December 

2016)

Older people 

and younger 

volunteers 600+ 5,756 9,506

£2,500 VCS 

Grants Fund, 

£1,250 VCS 

Grants Fund tbc

Caledonian

Paul Convery / 

Una O'Halloran / 

Rupert Perry LBI Housing

Funding for the Cally Festival 2016.  

Funding to contribute to the costs of 

the event co-ordinator. 19 June 2016

Local 

residents and 

businesses 

around 

Caledonian 

Road 8,000 to 9,000 10,300 40,300

£30,000 from 

LBI Festivals 

Fund, local 

businesses, 

lottery and grant 

making bodies 

tbc

Canonbury / 

St Marys

Alexander Diner/ 

Nicholas Wayne / 

Angela Picknell / 

Gary Poole / 

Nurullah Turan

Islington Sea 

Cadets (TS Quail)

Funding to contribute towards the 

annual costs associated with the 

running of a minibus which is used by 

a number of community groups free 

of charge.

Sept 2015 to 

Nov 2016

Community 

groups in 

Islington, 

including the 

Air Cadets and 

Islington 

Veterans 

Association Approx 60 1,500 1,500 Not applicable

Clerkenwell Raphael Andrews

Clerkenwell 

Parochial School

Funding to support children from low 

income families to participate fully in 

school life. Funding to pay for uniform 

for up to ten children and a 

contribution towards residential trip 

costs for four children.

January to 

July 2016

Children from 

low income 

familes Up to 14 500 500 Not applicable

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 1

P
age 3



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

NEW PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN DECEMBER 2015

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

Clerkenwell Raphael Andrews

St Mark's Church, 

Clerkenwell

Project to improve church access for 

the disabled. Funding to contribute 

towards plants, pots and materials for 

a sensory garden. 

March to June 

2016

All, especially 

visually 

impaired and 

older people

2,000 church 

visitors per 

year 500 600

£100 through 

fundraising

Clerkenwell / 

Highbury 

East / St 

Marys

Raphael Andrews 

/ Alice Donovan / 

Aysegul Erdogan 

/ Osh Gantly / 

Caroline Russell / 

Angela Picknell / 

Nurullah Turan

Islington Faiths 

Forum

Multi Faith and Community Service 

Celebration in the Islington Assembly 

Hall showcasing the work of Islington 

faith groups. Funding to pay for event 

management, lunch, drinks, security, 

AV person, volunteers, publicity and 

office costs.  

Prep work 

starts January 

2016, event 

on 16 March 

2016

Residents, 

community 

groups, faith 

based 

organisations 

and statutory 

agencies 

120 on the 

day 2,655.30 2,655.30

£1,500 

Assembly Hall 

free hire scheme

Finsbury 

Park

Michael 

O'Sullivan

Jannaty Women's 

Social Society

Cultural day at Finsbury Park 

Community Hub where members will 

showcase their country of origin's 

traditions, dress, food, entertainment, 

etc.  Funding to pay for food, drink, 

catering accessories, volunteers and 

publicity.

30 January 

2016

Women, 

young people 

and children 

living in 

Islington 120 500 500 Not applicable

Finsbury 

Park

Gary Heather / 

Asima Shaikh / 

Michael 

O'Sullivan

Holloway 

Neighbourhood 

Group (Elders 

Lunch Club)

Christmas party (including traditional 

dinner) and fourteen weekly lunch 

clubs.  Funding to pay for cook for 

fourteen weeks and DJ, tablecloths, 

soft drinks and decorations for the 

Christmas party.

15 December 

2015 to 31 

March 2016 Older people 50 1,200 2,081

£831 Holloway 

Neighbourhood 

Group, £50 

Morrisons tbc

Finsbury 

Park

Michael 

O'Sullivan

Holloway 

Neighbourhood 

Group (Sewing 

Classes)

Fifteen weekly sewing classes at the 

Old Fire Station.  Funding to pay for a 

tutor, materials, repair of equipment 

and contribution to hall hire.

8 January to 

22 April 2016

Mainly local 

female 

residents 35 1,000 1,405

£405 through 

fees for classes

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 2

P
age 4



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

NEW PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN DECEMBER 2015

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

Finsbury 

Park

Gary Heather / 

Michael 

O'Sullivan

Community 

Kitchens Project 

(Manor Gardens 

Welfare Trust)

Eight cooking workshops for children 

and young people at Finsbury Park 

Community Hub. Funding to pay for 

trainers, venue hire, project co-

ordination, ingredients, volunteers 

and other associated costs.

December 

2015 to 

March 2016

Local children 

and young 

people 30 to 50 1,726 3,474

£1,748 Children 

In Need

Highbury 

East

Aysegul Erdogan 

/ Osh Gantly / 

Caroline Russell 

Olden Community 

Garden

Restoration of Second Stepway and 

connecting paths improving 

accessibility and health and safety. 

Funding to contribute towards labour 

costs and materials.

Jan to April 

2016

Volunteers 

and garden 

visitors, 

especially 

those with 

mobility 

problems 1,000+ 1,000 1,500

£500 Olden 

Community 

Garden 

(subscriptions 

and fundraising 

activities)

Highbury 

East

Aysegul Erdogan 

/ Osh Gantly / 

Caroline Russell 

Transition 

Highbury

Purchase of projector screen for free 

monthly film screenings on 

sustainable living at Nanna's café in 

St Paul's Road.

Screen to be 

bought when 

funding is 

received

Transition 

Highbury 

members and 

wider 

community 

(open to all)

40 to 50 per 

screening 250 250 Not applicable

Highbury 

East

Aysegul Erdogan 

/ Osh Gantly / 

Caroline Russell 

LBI Traffic and 

Safety

Twelve Dr Bike/advice pop-ups and 

four one day bike maintenance 

workshops. The long term project aim 

is to develop a local sustainable 

cycling hub of activities.  Funding to 

pay for two mechanics for the Dr Bike 

sessions and the instructor, materials 

and parts for the workshops.

March 2016 

to March 

2017

Open to all 

Islington 

residents, but 

targetting 

young people 288 2,640 2,839.50

£199.50 London 

Borough of 

Islington

Highbury 

West Theresa Debono

Highbury Vale 

Blackstock Trust

Funding to pay for gym mats for twice 

weekly fitness classes for local 

women.

Mats to be 

bought when 

funding is 

received Local women

15 to 20 

weekly 

participants 250 250 Not applicable

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 3

P
age 5



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

NEW PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN DECEMBER 2015

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

St Peters

Alice Perry / Gary 

Doolan / Martin 

Klute

Friends of Graham 

Street Park 

(FROGS)

Funding for a coffee machine and ice-

cream freezer for a new kiosk which 

will be based in the under used park 

keeper's hut.

Equipment to 

be bought in 

March 2016

Park visitors, 

especially 

families 500 to 1,000 3,088 12,500

£8,000 to 

£12,000 Tescos 

Groundworks 

tbc, £3,350 

Cripplegate 

Foundation tbc, 

remainder from 

local businesses 

tbc

Tollington Jean Kaseki

Islington Chinese 

Association

Chinese New Year of the Monkey 

celebration 2016 at the group's 

premises in Hatchard Road.  Funding 

to pay for publicity, printing, postage, 

artists and volunteers.

13 February 

2016 Open to all 500+ 500 2,000

£1,500 Islington 

Chinese 

Association

Tollington Richard Watts

Hanley Crouch 

Community 

Association

Funding for the running costs of 

weekly arts and crafts classes, i.e. 

hall hire, energy bills and arts and 

crafts materials.

Jan to April 

2016

Mainly older 

women 10 to 15 400 400 Not applicable

PROJECT CHANGES TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN DECEMBER 2015

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

St Georges

Kat Fletcher / 

Satnam Gill / Nick 

Ward

St Mungo's 

Broadway Housing 

Association

Funding for two seaside trips, 

preferably to Southend.  Funding to 

pay for the hire of a people carrier, 

food, snacks, fuel and parking.

26 and 27 

April 2016

Care home 

residents

32 people (29 

residents and 

3 staff) 1,000 1,000 Not applicable

Grant 

originally 

awarded in 

March 2015 

for library/ 

resource 

centre 

equipment.

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 4

P
age 6



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

ADDITIONAL CHRISTMAS ACTIVITIES APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (GOVERNANCE AND HUMAN RESOURCES)

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

Mildmay

Joe Caluori / 

Jenny Kay / Olly 

Parker

Your Friendly 

Society

Funding to pay for food and 

refreshments for a Christmas party 

and a contribution to rent for a bingo 

group based at the Mildmay 

Community Centre.

18 December 

2015 (party), 

rent from 

December 

2015 to April 

2016 Older people 32 340 340 Not applicable

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 5

P
age 7



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  15 DECEMBER 2015

Total LIF funding requested and balance remaining

£240,000

Total allocations to be made from previous years' budgets: £18,341

Amount allocated by VCS Committee to date: £137,818

Amount allocated through delegated approval for Christmas activities: £340

Balance remaining: £120,183 £193,612 £137,818

New proposals for December VCS Committee: £33,765

Total amount remaining to allocate in 2015-16: £86,418

Balance:    Notes:

£2,431    Includes £1,245 from previous LIF allocations

£9,913    Includes £775 from previous LIF allocations

£1,000    Includes £500 from previous LIF allocations

£12,030    Includes £695 from previous LIF allocations

£8,181    Includes £2,053 from previous LIF allocations

£2,521    Includes £1,000 from previous LIF allocations

£5,361    Includes £1,495 from previous LIF allocations

£3,120    Includes £1,035 from previous LIF allocations

£2,790    Includes £1,000 from previous LIF allocations

£25    Includes £500 from previous LIF allocations

£6,534    Includes £786 from previous LIF allocations

£14,372    Includes £5,177 from previous LIF allocations

£3,853    Includes £456 from previous LIF allocations

£5,762    Includes £50 from previous LIF allocations

£2,004    Includes £1,513 from previous LIF allocations

£6,519    Includes £60 from previous LIF allocations

£86,418

Budget allocations

Progress comparison 2014 to 2015:

% of annual budget 

awarded: 57% 54%

Apr  - Nov 

2014

Apr - Nov 

2015

Total budget awarded:

Highbury West

Highbury East

Finsbury Park

Canonbury

Clerkenwell

Caledonian

Total Local Initiatives Fund budget allocation 2015-16:

Barnsbury

Bunhill 

Ward

2015-16 Balance remaining by ward:

Hillrise

Holloway

St Mary's

Junction

Tollington

St Peter's

Mildmay

St George's 

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR DECEMBER VCS COMMITTEE 6

P
age 8



Page 1 of 3 

 
  Chief Executive’s Department 
  Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 
 

Report of:  Executive Member for Economic and Community Development 
 

Meeting of: Date Agenda item Ward(s) 

Voluntary and Community Sector Committee 25th January 2016  All 

 

Delete as appropriate  Non-exempt  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 
 

1. Synopsis 
 

1.1 The Local Initiatives Fund is a flexible devolved budget for councillors to use to address issues and 
priorities in their wards. It is an important element of the council’s community provision and helps to 
meet the needs of local residents. In 2015/16 each ward has an allocation of £15,000 to spend on local 
schemes. Councillors consider project ideas for their ward and make recommendations to the Voluntary 
and Community Sector Committee. This report asks the committee to approve the proposals submitted 
by ward councillors for this financial year. 

  

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 To consider the new proposals and changes to previous proposals submitted by ward councillors as set 
out in Appendix A and to agree these proposals in principle subject to the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Governance and Human Resources) being satisfied that the necessary checks have been made and 
any other issues resolved. 
 

2.2 To note the amendments to ward budgets resulting from project funding being returned, as listed in the 
budget summary on the last page of Appendix A. 

  

3. Background 
 

3.1 In March 2011 the council agreed to strengthen the role of ward councillors by building on existing 
‘neighbourhood arrangements’ for some wards and establishing a mechanism for a more focussed ward 
based approach throughout the borough. From 1 April 2011 new ward partnership arrangements were 
introduced in place of the previous area committees.  
 

3.2 Simultaneously a report relating to the Islington Community Fund was agreed by Executive. This 
included a proposal to create a Local Initiatives Fund with each ward having an allocation of £20,000 
per year to spend on local projects.  
 

3.3 In February 2015, the Executive agreed that the Local Initiatives Fund budget be reduced to £15,000 
per ward (£240,000 total). 
 

3.4 The Local Initiatives Fund enables councillors to respond directly to priorities in their ward that lie 
Page 9

Agenda Item B1



Page 2 of 3 

outside of current mainstream funding programmes and might not otherwise receive funding. It helps 
them to address the needs of local residents and suggest improvements to local services/facilities or 
new schemes that will enhance the area. 
 

3.5 At Executive in March 2011 it was agreed that a Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Committee of 
the Executive should be set up to oversee the council’s engagement with the voluntary and community 
sector and to ensure value for money and fairness in the allocation of council resources to the sector.  
 

3.6 The VCS Committee’s terms of reference include ‘To be responsible for the allocation of the Islington 
Community Fund including…allocating the Local Initiatives Fund having regard to the recommendations 
of the relevant ward members/relevant ward partnership or neighbourhood group and on the basis that 
the funding will be allocated equally among the 16 wards making up the council’s area’. 
 

3.7 The committee agreed that each ward councillor should be given a notional allocation of the Local 
Initiatives Fund (i.e. divided equally between the councillors elected for each ward). In 2015/16 £15,000 
is available to each ward; therefore the notional allocation for each councillor is £5,000. In September 
2014 the VCS Committee agreed to introduce a minimum award of £250 per project.  
 

3.8 The Democratic Services team in the Chief Executive’s department is responsible for managing the 
Local Initiatives Fund in liaison with ward councillors and members of the VCS Committee. The team 
ensures that funds are used appropriately and for the purpose for which they are allocated. 
  

3.9 The sixth tranche of proposals submitted by ward councillors for this financial year is set out in Appendix 
A. It is recommended that these proposals are agreed in principle subject to the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Governance and Human Resources) being satisfied that the necessary checks have been 
made and any other issues resolved. 
 

3.10 Occasionally projects do not proceed as planned and funding is returned to ward budgets. These 
amendments are listed in the budget summary on the last page of Appendix A. 

  

4. Implications 
 

4.1 Financial implications:  
 The proposals referred to in this report will be met from budget allocations for the Local Initiatives Fund.   

 
4.2 Legal Implications: 

 The general power of competence pursuant to Section1 of the Localism Act 2011 which came into force 
on 6 April 2012 provides the council with very broad powers ‘to do anything that individuals generally 
may do’. This covers the power to give grants to voluntary and community sector organisations as 
proposed in this report and includes anything which it considers is likely to achieve the promotion or 
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of the whole or part of its area or all or 
any of the persons resident or present in that area. The provision of resources through the Local 
Initiatives Fund is likely to promote the social and economic well being of Islington’s residents.  
 
The council is under a fiduciary duty to ensure that its resources are used appropriately. Where the 
money is allocated to outside bodies, the requirements of the procurement rules may apply. In any 
event it will be important to maintain current practice of ensuring that the money will be used for the 
purposes for which it is allocated and that individual members are made aware of the responsibility they 
bear in making recommendations in relation to specific groups. 
 

4.3 Environmental Implications: 

 When considering proposals the VCS Committee will take relevant environmental implications into 
account.  
 

4.4 Resident Impact Assessment: 
 The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster 
good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 
share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to 

Page 10



Page 3 of 3 

remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of 
disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public life.  
 
The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding and when 
considering proposals the VCS Committee will take relevant equalities implications into account. The 
Local Initiatives Fund provides resources for local projects which directly meet the needs of local 
residents, many of whom are from groups with protected characteristics. It enables some of Islington’s 
poorest communities to access community-based services and activities and allows provision to be 
developed locally which can reach groups of residents that may not otherwise be supported.  
 

  

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 
 

 The Local Initiatives Fund is an effective way of addressing local priorities and provides a mechanism 
for ward councillors to support small projects which might otherwise not be funded. Proposals submitted 
for approval represent a wide range of activity and will deliver significant benefit to local communities.  

 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Local Initiatives Fund Proposals  
 
Background papers: none 
 
 
Final report clearance: 
 
Signed by: 
 
  

 
Executive Member for Economic and Community Development 

 
 
 
 

11 January 2016 
Received by: 

 

 

  
Head of Democratic Services 

 
11 January 2016 

   
   
Report Author: John Lynch, Head of Democratic Services  
Tel: 020 7527 3002  
Email: john.lynch@islington.gov.uk   
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  25 JANUARY 2016

NEW PROPOSALS TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR COMMITTEE IN JANUARY 2016

Ward Councillor Organisation Project Summary Timescale

Areas / 

Residents to 

Benefit

Number of 

Residents to 

Benefit

Budget 

Proposal 

Amount (£)

Project 

Total (£)

Match Funding 

Details

Governance 

and Human 

Resources 

Comments

Highbury 

West

Theresa Debono 

/ Richard 

Greening / Andy 

Hull

Holloway 

Neighbourhood 

Group

Twelve weekly drop-in sessions led 

by volunteers at the Stress Project 

therapy centre in Shelburne Road. 

Funding to contribute towards the 

project manager's salary, room hire, 

volunteer expenses, therapy 

materials and refreshments.  

4 Feb to 21 

April 2016

Local people 

who 

experience 

mental health 

problems 50 900 2,111

£827 HNG, £384 

through charging 

for therapies

Hillrise

Micheline 

Ngongo / David 

Poyser /Marian 

Spall

Caxton House 

Community Centre

Funding to pay for publicity, 

sponsorship forms and refreshments 

for a three hour Zumbathon to raise 

money for the centre. 

27 February 

2016

Local adults 

and children 

aged 8+ 50+ 300 500

£200 Caxton 

House (hall hire)

Mildmay

Joe Caluori / 

Jenny Kay / Olly 

Parker

The Garden 

Classroom

Programme of outdoor learning 

activities for Newington Green 

Primary School pupils which will be 

held on Newington Green.  Funding 

to pay for staff costs, graphic 

designer, volunteers, equipment and 

resources, refreshments, printing and 

overheads.

Feb to June 

2016

Children, 

teachers and 

volunteers at 

the school 1,000+ 2,900 3,000

£100 Newington 

Green Primary 

School

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR JANUARY VCS COMMITTEE 1

P
age 13



APPENDIX A LOCAL INITIATIVES FUND 2015-16  25 JANUARY 2016

Total LIF funding requested and balance remaining

£240,000

Total allocations to be made from previous years' budgets: £29,384

Amount allocated by VCS Committee to date: £171,923

Balance remaining: £97,461

New proposals for January VCS Committee: £4,100 £194,362 £171,923

Total amount remaining to allocate in 2015-16: £93,361

Balance:    Notes:

£2,431    Includes £1,245 from previous LIF allocations

£9,913    Includes £775 from previous LIF allocations

£1,000    Includes £500 from previous LIF allocations

£22,574    Includes £11,239 from previous LIF allocations

£8,181    Includes £2,053 from previous LIF allocations

£2,521    Includes £1,000 from previous LIF allocations

£5,861    Includes £1,995 from previous LIF allocations

£2,220    Includes £1,035 from previous LIF allocations

£2,490    Includes £1,000 from previous LIF allocations

£25    Includes £500 from previous LIF allocations

£6,534    Includes £786 from previous LIF allocations

£11,472    Includes £5,177 from previous LIF allocations

£3,853    Includes £456 from previous LIF allocations

£5,762    Includes £50 from previous LIF allocations

£2,004    Includes £1,513 from previous LIF allocations

£6,519    Includes £60 from previous LIF allocations

£93,361

Hillrise

Holloway

St Mary's

Junction

Tollington

St Peter's

Mildmay

St George's 

Total Local Initiatives Fund budget allocation 2015-16:

Barnsbury

Bunhill 

Ward

2015-16 Balance remaining by ward:

Highbury West

Highbury East

Finsbury Park

Canonbury

Clerkenwell

Caledonian

Budget allocations

Progress comparison 2014 to 2015:

% of annual budget 

awarded: 58% 67%

Apr  - Dec

2014

Apr - Dec 

2015

Total budget awarded:

BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR JANUARY VCS COMMITTEE 2

P
age 14



Page 1 of 5 

 
  Chief Executive’s Department 
  Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 
 

Report of: Executive Member for Economic and Community Development 
 

Meeting of: Date Agenda item Ward(s) 

Voluntary and Community Sector Committee 25th Jan 2016  All 

 

Delete as appropriate  Non-exempt  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: New Discretionary Rate Relief Awards    
 
 

1. Synopsis 
 

1.1 In January 2015, VCS Committee agreed all of the Council’s current discretionary rate relief 
(DRR) awards to local organisations for five years (1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020).  
 

1.2 This report asks VCS Committee to consider new applications for DRR received since July 
2015. 

 
 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 To agree DRR to Community Matters’ Union Chapel Project to 31 March 2020. 
 

2.2 
 
 
 

To defer a decision on the application received from Fourth Monkey Theatre Company until the 
VCS Committee meeting in June 2016, due to the need for further clarification of a number of 
aspects of the organisation’s application.  
 

2.3 
 
 
 

To reject the applications from  Miirkey Mall due to the organisation not having provided 
requested information on its services for the community and charitable status. 

2.4 
 
 
 

To reject the application from Adaptive Business Solutions as the organisation no longer 
operates in the borough.  

2.5 
 
 
 

To reject the application from Community Matters as, although this is a membership based 
organisation with 11 Islington organisations as members, it is a national charity and the 
application is for its main headquarters making it ineligible for DRR.    
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item B2



Page 2 of 5 

3. Background 
 

3.1 Registered charities and not for profit organisations benefit from relief from non-domestic rates 
in two ways:  

a) Mandatory Relief  

This is given automatically if they are registered charities.  They receive 80% rate relief which is 
entirely funded by central government, at no cost to the council.  
 
 
b) Discretionary Rate Relief (DRR)  

Local authorities also have discretionary powers to grant DRR to non-profit making 
organisations to either:  
 

a) top-up the remaining 20% of the rates bill of a registered charity getting mandatory rate relief  

or  

b) pay up to 100% of the rates of a non-profit making organisation that isn’t a registered charity 
and therefore not eligible for 80% mandatory rate relief. 

4. Criteria 
 

4.1 The criteria for DRR (Appendix A) was agreed by VCS Committee in 2011.  This prioritises 
local voluntary organisations providing services to residents, but excludes the head offices of 
national and international charities based in the borough.  The cost of a DRR award balanced 
against the amount of local benefit is also considered. 
 

5. Funding Discretionary Rate Relief 
 

5.1 Discretionary rate relief is a cost effective way for the Council to support local voluntary 
organisations as it only bears 30% of the cost of an award.  The remaining 70% is funded by 
central government (50%) and the GLA (20%).  .   
 

5.2 Current DRR awards total £966,504.47 and the cost to the Council is £289,951.34.  However, 
the final annual cost will be higher as some organisations awarded DRR are still waiting for a 
rateable value for their premises to be set and have not had to pay any rates so far.   
 

5.3 The Council’s budget to fund DRR is £320,000.  The cost of all current awards and the new 
applications recommended for approval in this report can be met from this budget.    
 

6. New Applications  
 

6.1 Five organisations have applied for DRR since July 2015. The list below outlines the 
organisation that meets the criteria.  

Page 16



Page 3 of 5 

6.2 Recommended for DRR  
 

Organisation Address Activities 
DRR 

(cost to 
Council) 

Union Chapel  
19b Compton Terrace, 
London  
N1 2UN 

Administration Offices to help with 
coordination of community projects. 
(e.g. Homelessness Project) 

£538.32 

  
TOTAL RECOMMENDED £538.32 

 

  
6.3 The following organisation has been deferred until further information clarifying their not-for-

profit status and the benefit to Islington residents can be provided: 
 

Deferred to next VCS Committee 
 

Organisation Address Activities DRR 
(cost to Council) 

Fourth Monkey 
Theatre 
Company 

97-101 Seven 
Sisters Road, 
London, N7 7QP 

Theatre and arts organisation £18,044 

 

6.4 The applications received from the following do not meet the criteria and are not recommended 
for a DRR award or requested for further information: 
 

Not Recommended for DRR 
 

Organisation Address Activities DRR 
(cost to Council) 

Community 
Matters 

Part 1st Floor 
12-20 Baron 
Street, London 
N1 9LL 

National membership charity that supports 
multipurpose community organisations, 
communities of interest companies, local 
support and infrastructure bodies. 

£201.15 

Miirkey Mail 
174 Seven 
Sisters Road, 
London, N7 7PX 

Provides rentable cubicles for local 
business/ residents. Offers space to deliver 
community forums and activities.  

£7560.00 

Adaptive 
Business 
Solutions 

(Formerly) Unit 2, 
St Mark’s Studio, 
16 Chillingworth 
Road, London, 
N7 8QJ 

Providing job searching opportunities and 
preparation to find work for unemployed. 

N/A 

 

  

7. Current DRR Budget 
 

7.1 The additional cost to the Council for DRR awards to the organisations set out in 6.2 would be 
£538.32 which can be met from within the Council’s £320,000 capped DRR budget.  

  

8. 
 
8.1 
 

 
 
 
 

Implications    

 
Financial Implications: 
 

The current annual budget for Discretionary Rate Relief (DRR) is £320k and the four additional 
reliefs to be granted will be funded through this existing budget.   
 

 

Page 17



Page 4 of 5 

8.2 
 

Legal Implications:  
 

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 confers discretion on local billing 
authorities to grant discretionary rate relief from all or part of the amount of non-domestic rates 
payable to registered charities and certain non-profit making organisations.  Authorities have 
discretion to award up to 100% relief to non-profit making bodies and can grant up to 20% relief 
by way of top-up to charities bodies in receipt of the 80% mandatory relief.  
 
The Council may grant rate relief for a fixed period of time.  The Non-Domestic Rating 
(Discretionary Relief) Regulations 1989 require the council to give notice to the ratepayer 
stating the start date and end date of the period in respect of which relief is given.  
 
In deciding whether or not to grant rate relief to applicants, the council should consider carefully 
each application on its merits taking into account its Criteria for Awarding Discretionary Rate 
Relief as set out in Appendix A. 
 
Following the introduction of the Business Rate Retention Scheme, the cost of funding 
discretionary relief granted on or after 1 April 2013 is met equally by local authorities and 
Central Government. The Council bears 30% of the cost of relief and the Greater London 
Authority 20% as it is entitled to receive 20% of the business rates collected by the council   
 
The Council is required to give 12 months’ notice of the withdrawal of relief.   
 

8.3 Environmental Implications: 
 

None. 
  
8.4 Resident Impact Assessment: 

 
The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster 
good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard to the 
need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to 
take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public life. 
The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding. 
 
Organisations recommended for DRR are particularly focussed on serving poor and vulnerable 
residents and those with protected characteristics. Many groups are based on council housing 
estates or located in deprived neighbourhoods. The criteria for DRR were drawn up specifically 
to support organisations serving the most disadvantaged sections of our community.   
 

9. Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 
 

9.1 All DRR applications received have been assessed against the criteria already agreed by VCS 
Committee.  The organisation recommended for DRR awards fit the criteria and, If approved, 
DRR awards will be to 31 March 2020.   

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – DRR Criteria 
 
Background papers: none 

Page 18



Page 5 of 5 

 
Final report clearance: 
 
 
Signed by: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Executive Member for Economic and Community Development  25 January 2016 

Received by:  
 

 

 Head of Democratic Services Date 
 
Report Author: Cedric D’Amico 
Tel: 020 7527 3178 
Email: cedric.d’amico@islington.gov.uk 

 
  
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



  

APPENDIX A 
 

Criteria for Awarding Discretionary Rate Relief 
 

Each case will be considered on its own merits with priority given to efficient and well managed 
organisations that: 
 

 primarily benefit Islington residents 

 demonstrate a link with council priorities and promote a fairer Islington 

 relieve the council of providing certain facilities or services 

 serve the needs of poorer and excluded sections of the local community 

 provide services for and in the borough’s most deprived neighbourhoods 

 maximise the use of their premises for community benefit 

 serve equalities groups protected under the Equality Act 2010 
 

Priority will also be given to: 
 

 local organisations that are funded by the Council through grant-aid or service contract 

 local organisations that have a governing body whose membership mainly consists of 
people who live and/or work in Islington or have a strong connection with the borough 

 organisations reliant on volunteers to carry out their activities 

 self help groups with few sources of funding to carry out their activities 
 

Other Considerations 
 

 the financial cost to the council incurred in awarding relief 

 the organisation’s ability to pay its rates  

 the amount of central government funding levered-in by a discretionary rate relief award 
to deliver statutory or other council services 

 

Not Eligible for Discretionary Rate Relief 
 

Islington Council will not normally award discretionary rate relief to: 
 

 Profit making organisations 

 Empty properties 

 Charity shops 

 Private schools, colleges or nurseries or schools not within the Islington family of schools 

 National charity headquarters 

 Housing Associations (other than for community centres) 

 Car parking spaces 

 Buildings exclusively used for worship 
 
Award Limits 
 
The following limits to awards will apply (cost to the council of discretionary rate relief): 
 

Up to £6,000 Organisations will normally be awarded 100% discretionary rate relief 

Over £6,000 
Awards will be proportionate to the level of local benefit which may be 
less than 100% discretionary rate relief 

 
Conditions 
 
All organisations will be expected on request to: 
 

 make available annual accounts or financial statements 

 provide evidence of activity over the past year 

 demonstrate plans for services and activities over the coming year  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Finance 

7 Newington Barrow Way, London N7 7EP 

 

Report of: Executive Member for Finance and Resources 

 

Meeting of  

Voluntary and Community Sector Committee 

Date 

25th January 2016 

Agenda Item 

 

Ward(s) 

 

All 

    

Delete as 

appropriate 

 Non-exempt 

 

 

 

 

 

LONDON BOROUGHS GRANTS COMMITTEE – LEVY 2016-17 

1. Background 

1.1. This report seeks approval for the London Boroughs Grants Committee (LBGC) 2016-17 provisional 

budget, and the payment by the Council of its annual subscription.  The Council, together with other 

London boroughs, is a member of the LBGC.  Accordingly the Council is required to approve the annual 

committee budget (£10.486m in 2016-17) and the Council’s levy (£220k in 2016-17). 

1.2. The Council’s annual subscription currently contributes towards the funding of many London-wide 

organisations providing a wide range of services.  These services are accessible by Islington residents 

and contribute towards the Council’s priorities including tackling homelessness, unemployment and 

poverty. Islington residents and Islington-based organisations currently receive considerable benefit 

from the annual subscription. The net-benefit to Islington residents is estimated to be about £0.4m per 

annum. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. To note the LBGC proposed 2016-17 annual budget of £10.486m (paragraph 3.3). 

2.2. To agree, Islington’s estimated contribution of £220k in 2016-17, a decrease of just over £10k on the 

2015-16 contribution including one off payment of £12,580 from the LBGC (paragraph 3.4). 

3. London Boroughs Grants Committee Levy - Analysis 

3.1. The London Councils Grants Committee has agreed the following priorities; these reflect some of the 

Council’s priorities and historically the funding has been of benefit to both Islington residents and 

Islington based voluntary organizations:  

 Homelessness 

 Sexual and Domestic Violence 

 Tackling Poverty (through advice and training for employment) 

 Support for London’s voluntary and community organisations 

3.2. Islington currently benefits in two ways from being a member of the Committee. 

Page 23

Agenda Item B3



 

3.2.1. Firstly, it is currently estimated that about 18% (£1.572m) of the current year funding approved 

by the LBGC is allocated to commissioning organisations based in the borough, although most 

commissioning organisations provide services across London and in many cases benefit Islington 

residents. 

3.2.2.  Secondly, it is estimated that up to £0.4m (4%) of the current funding benefits Islington 

residents. This has included funding to organisations subcontracted to provide services by 

commissioning organisations, including Alone in London Service and Hillside Clubhouse.   

3.3. The total budget for the scheme will be £10.486m in 2015-16. Total borough contributions will be 

unchanged at £9m in 2016-17.  Borough contributions towards administrative costs will be £0.4m in 

2016-17, unchanged from 2015-16. The remainder will be financed by European Social Fund grants 

(£1m) and a one off contribution from Grants Committee reserves (£486k). 

3.4. The Islington contribution to the scheme is expected to decrease from just under £231k in 2015-16 to 

just over £220k in 2016-17. 

3.5. The Grants Committee has recently consulted on the future of the London Boroughs Grants Scheme 

once current commissions end in March 2017. Decisions on the principles and priorities of the scheme 

from 2017 will be taken by London Councils Leaders Committee in December 2015; it is likely that the 

scheme will be largely unchanged with some modifications to ensure affordability and value for money. 

4. Implications 

Financial Implications 

4.1. The 2016-17 levy is within budget expectations. 

4.2. The budget is subject to the agreement of London Councils Leaders Committee on 8th December 2015 

and the agreement of two-thirds of London boroughs by the end of January 2016. 

Legal Implications 

4.3. Under the constitution of the LBGC, the Council is required to confirm the Committee’s budget and its 

own contribution. The Council is required to inform the Committee of its approval or otherwise by 1st 

February 2016. 

Residents Impact Assessment 

4.4. A significant proportion of the grants made by the Committee are to organisations meeting the needs 

and priorities of a wide range of Islington’s community, and in particular aimed at improving equality 

within the borough. 

 

Final Report Clearance 

 

Signed by  

 

  

 Executive Member for Finance and Resources  Date 

    

 

Received by    

 Head of Democratic Services  Date 

Responsible Officer: Mike Curtis, Corporate Director of Finance 

Report author:   Mark Badcock, Financial Advisor, Financial Planning 

E-mail:   mark.badcock@islington.gov.uk 

Page 24

mailto:mark.badcock@islington.gov.uk


 

Page 1 of 12 

 
  Chief Executive’s Department 
  Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 
 
Report of: Executive Member for Economic and Community Development 
 

Meeting of:  Date Agenda item Ward(s) 

Voluntary and Community Sector  Committee 25 January 2016  All 

 

Delete as appropriate  Non-exempt  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

SUBJECT:  Islington VCS Partnership Grants Programme 2016-2020 

 

1 Synopsis 
 

1.1 The voluntary sector lies at the heart of the council’s ambition for a fairer Islington. The 
sector plays an important role in providing a voice for our most vulnerable residents, 
mobilising community action, promoting community cohesions and tackling the causes and 
effects of poverty, inequality, and social and economic exclusion.   
 

1.2 Between 2011 and 2015, 49 organisations have received grant funding of £2,328,200 per 
annum from the VCS Grants Fund and the Advice Fund.  The Council’s current VCS Grants 
Fund and Advice Fund programmes administered by the VCS Development Team are due 
to end on the 30th June 2016.   The overall Islington Community Fund of £3,435,000 also 
includes grant funding provision for Direct Rate Relief, Local Initiatives Fund, Community 
Festivals Fund and the VCS Rescue Fund.  

 
1.3 Since August 2014, the council, in consultation with the Voluntary and Community Sector, 

other public sector bodies and potential future investment partners has been examining how 
best to continue to support the sector and its work to meet the changing needs of residents. 
This work included a comprehensive review of the Council’s current advice services 
delivered in-house or by VCS organisations, and the development of new VCS strategy for 
Islington “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 - 2020”,  
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
1.4 The Strategy, ratified at the meeting of the Voluntary and Community Sector Committee on 

8th October 2015 confirms the council’s commitment to maintaining grants programmes in 
order to protect vital services and enable Islington’s voluntary and community sector to 
continue to deliver positive outcomes for residents. The document sets out the role that 
voluntary and community sector organisations play in helping the Council to meet its 
priorities, outlines the Council’s approach to working with the sector, and makes a series of 
commitments in the areas of funding, contracting, premises and infrastructure.   

Page 25

Agenda Item C1



 

Page 2 of 12 

 
1.5 Future arrangements for Community Chest and Local Initiatives Fund, now administered by 

Democratic Services and Discretionary Rate Relief administered by Corporate Finance which 
form part of the overall Islington Community Fund were agreed by the VCS Committee at 
meeting in January 2015 and March 2015. 

 
1.6 The closure of the current VCS Grant Fund and Advice Fund represents an opportunity to 

replace the existing programmes with a new Islington VCS Partnership Grants programme 
aligned to the vision and aspirations set out in the VCS Strategy, the key findings of the 
council’s Advice Review and the changed economic and social context.   The proposed Grant 
Programme will provide grants to VCS organisations on a two plus two year basis between 
2016 and 2020. 

 
1.7 This report outlines proposals for the new Islington’s Partnership Grants Programme 2016-

2020, and the allocation of the total budget of £2,456,000 (as detailed in section 5 of this 
report) across the  five key programme strands: 
 

 Strategic Partners – Borough-wide Infrastructure 

 Strategic Partners – Neighbourhoods 

 Delivery Partners 

 Strategic Partner – Volunteering 

 Strategic Partners – Advice  
 

2 Recommendations 
 

2.1 To agree that the Islington Partnership Grant Programme 2016-2020 be segmented into the 
following five programme strands as outlined in section 4.1 of this report. 
 

1) Strategic Partners – Borough-wide Infrastructure 
2) Strategic Partners – Neighbourhood  
3) Delivery Partners 
4) Strategic Partner – Volunteering; and 
5) Strategic Partners – Advice 

 
2.2 To agree the allocation of funding across the five proposed strands as outlined in section 

5.6 of this report. 
 

2.3 To agree the outline outcomes for the Partnership Grants Programme as detailed in 
sections 4.2 to 4.6 of this report and in the Council’s Voluntary and Community Sector 
Strategy 2016-2020 attached as Appendix 1. 

 
2.4 To agree the application process and time table as outlined in section 6 and attached as 

Appendix 2 of this report 
 

3 Background 
 

3.1 Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 – 2020 
 

3.1.1 Since August 2014, and to help the council develop its thinking around future support for 
local voluntary organisations, the council held a series of consultation events with the 
Voluntary and Community Sector, other public sector bodies and potential future 
investment partners.  This work led to the development of a new VCS strategy for 
Islington.  “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 – 

Page 26



 

Page 3 of 12 

2020”. Attached as Appendix 1 of this report.  The Council’s Voluntary and Community 
Sector Strategy 2016-2020 was ratified at VCS Committee in November 2015.   
 

3.1.2 A time when central government is cutting funding for public services and cutting welfare 
benefits for those out of work and in work, the Strategy recognises that the need for a 
strong, resilient,  independent voluntary and community sector, able to respond to the 
needs of Islington’s residents, is greater than ever. The strategy recognises the key role 
that the sector will have over the next four years in: 
 
 Addressing and preventing deeper complex social issues and long-term challenges that 

affect our residents 
 Supporting residents to be independent and resilient 
 Promoting community cohesion and championing equality 
 Supporting neighbourhoods and communities to grow 
 Providing or sign-posting residents to appropriate, high quality advice and guidance 
 

3.1.3 In the face of budget pressures and increased competition for funding, both the council 
and the VCS sector will have to find new ways of working both individually and collectively 
if we are to meet our shared priorities. Whilst the strategy recognises the importance of 
providing grant funding and small grants to the VCS, it places emphasis on developing 
effective outcome driven partnerships with the Sector. Delivering the strategy will require a 
whole council approach – overseen by the Third Sector Strategic Forum and co-ordinated 
by the newly formed VCS Development Team. 
 

3.1.4 The strategy identifies four ways in which the Council will continue to support the sector 
and its work in meeting the needs of residents:  
 
 Funding: including partnership grants and small grants programmes, a bespoke training 

and capacity building fund, and discretionary rate relief. 
 Commissioning and procurement: Commissioning organisations to deliver services, and 

ensuring social value is included in our approach to commissioning. 
 Premises: developing a borough-wide premises strategy that maximises the use of our 

buildings, and enables organisations to share premises, reduce costs and maximise income 
generation. 

 Working strategically with key partners: to build the capacity of the sector, promote 
volunteering, support fundraising, establish networks, maximise our collective impact in 
neighbourhoods, and ensure a coordinated whole-Council approach to the VCS 
 

3.2 Advice Fund Review  
 

3.2.1 Since August 2014 Officers in consultation with other investment partners and 
representatives from the VCS undertook a comprehensive review of the Council’s current 
advice services delivered in-house by Council departments or by VCS organisations 
commissioned or grant funded by the Council.   
 

3.2.2 The Council currently spends over £1.85 million on advice services in total.  £445,000 is 
spent on our in house Imax Advice Service (a reduction of £200K from 2014/15) and 
£1.406 million on independent advice services delivered by VCS organisations. Of this 
£1,406 Million, £1.165 million is provided as core grants. Housing and Adult Social 
Services (HASS) also commission specialist services at a cost of £241,000.  In addition, 
Islington’s Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) currently procures advice services from 
Camden CAB delivered in ten GP surgeries across the borough at a cost of £149,000. 
 

Page 27



 

Page 4 of 12 

3.2.3 The review undertaken with other investment partners and VCS organisations examined 
the impact of central government’s welfare reforms (Universal Credit, Personal 
Independence Payments (PIP) and the overall reduction in entitlements and level of 
benefits) on local residents and their future advice needs, taking in to account the context 
of the significant financial challenges faced by the Council and the advice organisations 
operating in the borough. 
 

3.2.4 We estimate that more than 23,000 residents will be directly affected by welfare reforms 
such as the introduction of Universal Credit, Personal Independence Payments and a 
reduction in entitlements and levels of benefits and that this will continue to drive the need 
for advice in the borough over the next five years.   

 
3.2.5 Future Advice services must change to cope with the large numbers of residents affected 

by these changes.  Our advice offer will need to move to a multi-disciplinary, holistic model 
that provides more effective interventions and tackles a range of related issues at the 
same time – including employment support.  The emphasis should be on enabling people 
to become more independent and reduce the need for them to repeatedly seek advice 
services. 

 
3.2.6 Advice Review – Summary of Key Findings 
 
3.2.6.1 Despite high spend, the review of advice services highlighted numerous inefficiencies 

and inconsistencies that run from the point of access through to case resolution including: 
 

 Incoherent commissioning and duplication of  contracted services by the Council and other 
key partners  

 Inconsistent grant awards, especially in relation to income, and premises arrangements 
between advice services 

 Multiple entry points, with different assessments at each point of access  
 A need to up-skill and integrate the advice offer of smaller VCS organisations into 

Islington’s central advice offer 
 Inconsistent data collection that makes it difficult to gauge resident need and demand 

across our current grant funded advice partners 
 A lack of established referral mechanisms between key parts of the advice system, which 

contribute to unacceptable waiting times, and which require residents to access separate 
services and undertake reassessment to resolve their issues. 

 A consistent inability of services to deliver value to residents on their first, second or third 
contact with our services, predictably taking more than four contacts to respond to 
customer demand. 

 A failure of existing services to work with residents holistically or to take advantage of the 
full range of services in the borough designed to enable residents to develop resilience 
and independence. 

 
3.2.7 A New model for providing Advice Services 

 
3.2.7.1  Following the review, a new model for providing advice services has been established.  

This model will provide the framework for the ‘Advice Partners’ Grants Programme.  The 
proposed Future Advice Fund Model is attached as Appendix 5.  
 

3.2.7.2   This model aims to improve the delivery of advice services across the following areas: 
 
 Access and outreach 
 Primary access channel 

Page 28



 

Page 5 of 12 

 Detailed triage service and initial advice 
 Generalist advice 
 Targeted specialist advice and legal support for excluded population groups 
 Specialist advice and litigation 

 
3.2.7.3 In order to address the issues identified through the advice review, future grant funded 

advice partners will need to: 
 

 Establish a consistent common approach to assessment and referral at first point of 
contact. 

 Assess the feasibility and work towards integrating or ensuring compatibility between 
organisational case management and triage systems  

 Address the increased volumes of demand expected to result from major Welfare Reforms 
within the context of reduced public sector funding 

 Reduce waiting lists and times by promoting greater collaboration and effective client 
referrals between agencies 

 Maintain an appropriate balance between ‘access and outreach’ and ‘advice delivery’  

 Maintain resident access to specialist advice and litigation in key areas such as 
immigration, asylum and housing where appropriate 

 Prioritise a generalist holistic and preventative approach that reduces future demand on 
services 

 
3.2.7.4 In order to support the proposed increase in demand for generalist advice in the wake of 

Welfare Reforms, the most pressing task is to increase the funding allocated to generalist 
support, the area of advice most likely to see an increase in demand over the coming 
years. 
 

4 The Islington VCS  Partnership Grants Programme 
 

4.1 In order to realise the vision articulated in the VCS strategy and the Advice Service Review 
it is proposed that VCS Partnership Grants Programme 2016-2020,  will award grants 
covering the four year period on a two plus two year basis.  The Programme will comprise of 
the following strands: 
 

1) Strategic Partners – Borough-wide Infrastructure 
2) Strategic Partners – Neighbourhood  
3) Delivery Partners 
4) Strategic Partner – Volunteering; and 
5) Strategic Partners – Advice 
 

4.2 1) Strategic Partners - Borough-wide Infrastructure 
 

4.2.1 This grant programme is to support strategic borough-wide organisations with the 
necessary expertise and capacity to provide leadership to Islington’s voluntary and 
community sector and ensure the infrastructure is in place to enable the organisations 
improve outcomes for Islington residents. Funded organisations will be expected to: 
 

 Provide strategic leadership for the sector 
 Ensure that Islington’s voluntary and community sector has skills and knowledge needed to 

sustain and grow 
 Ensure that Islington’s voluntary and community sector can compete for funding and is 

financially secure 
 Ensure that Islington’s voluntary and community sector maximises the use of its resources  

Page 29



 

Page 6 of 12 

 
4.3 2) Strategic Partners - Neighbourhood 

 
4.3.1 This grant programme will support strategic neighbourhood partners that work with other 

voluntary and community sector organisations and mainstream services to develop, 
deliver, coordinate and sustain a high quality offer of neighbourhood-based services and 
activities. Funded organisations will be expected to: 
 

 Provide strategic leadership within the local community 
 Coordinate a coherent and engaging neighbourhood-based offer of services and activities for 

local residents 
 Ensure that local community facilities and assets are utilised to their full potential 
 Attract external funding that can facilitate delivery in the local community 

 
4.4 3) Delivery Partners  

 
4.4.1 This grant programme will support organisations that work directly with residents to 

improve outcomes and quality of life. Grants will be awarded to organisations that have 
engaged with residents and communities, undertaken effective community profiling and 
developed high quality services or activities that meet identified need. Organisations 
funded under this strand will be expected to: 
 

 Work with residents to tackle complex social issues and long-term health challenges 
 Support residents to be more resilient and independent  
 Promote cohesion, reduce inequalities and champion the needs of Islington’s diverse 

communities 
 Support neighbourhoods and communities to develop and grow 

 
4.5 4) Strategic Partners - Volunteering Brokerage 

 
4.5.1 This grant programme is to support a strategic partner to provide a borough-wide 

volunteering brokerage service and support Islington’s VCS organisations to manage 
volunteers effectively.  Funded organisation will be expected to: 
 

 Provide strategic leadership to promote volunteering across Islington 
 Help identify and broker high quality volunteering opportunities to support the development 

and resilience of Islington’s VCS Sectors 
 Work in partnership with the council, other public sector partners, businesses and VCS 

partners to help develop pathways into employment for Islington residents 
 

4.6 5) Strategic Partners - Advice 
 

4.6.1 This grant programme is to support registered advice and guidance organisations to apply 
new working practices to provide a coherent and seamless advice system that supports 
Islington residents. As illustrated in section 3.2 and the new Advice Model attached as 
Appendix 5, this programme will comprise of six distinct strands: 
 

 Access and outreach 
 Primary access channel 
 Detailed triage service and initial advice 
 Generalist advice 
 Targeted specialist advice and legal support for excluded population groups 
 Specialist advice and litigation 

Page 30



 

Page 7 of 12 

 
5 Overall Budget and Allocation across the Programme Strands 

 
5.1 A budget of £1,050,000 for the VCS Grant Fund was agreed by the Executive at its meeting 

in March 2011. Through the use of an underspend in the Islington Strategic Partnership 
budget and other budget contributions from other corporate departments, the total spend on 
grant funding allocated to VCS Organisations in the VCS Grant Fund Programme rose to 
£1.163 million in 2015/16 (see Appendix 3). 

 
5.2 By retaining the budget levels identified in 5.1 for Islington’s VCS Partnership Grants 

Programme strands 1-4. The council is able to maintain is commitment to continue to 
support the VCS as outlined “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector 
Strategy 2016 - 2020”.   

 
5.3 In line with plans outlined in the VCS Strategy and as part of the Advice Review, we have 

established a joint approach to funding independent advice services across the Council and 
in partnership with the CCG.   This approach has enabled the Council to establish a budget 
of £1,406,000 per annum for the ‘Strategic Partners – Advice’ strand. 

 
5.4 The budget for ‘Strategic Partners – Advice’ (strand 5), consists of £1,165 Million from the 

current VCS core grant budget held by VCS Development Team, £146,000 from Housing 
and £95,000 from Adult Social Services.  Additional resources of £100K from the CCG may 
be secured to bolster and extend advices services in response to identified needs from 
September 2016.  This additional funding could be utilised to support additional capacity 
building and or match funding for any future funding bids. 

 
5.5 As a result the total budget across the five proposed strands in the VCS Partnership Grant 

Programme stands at £2,456,000   
 

5.6 In order to meet the priorities and aspirations set out in the Council’s VCS Strategy 2016-
2020, it is proposed that the following levels of funding are attached to the proposed strands 
illustrated in figure 1 below. 

 
Figure 1: VCS Partnership Grants Programme 2016-2020 - Proposed Funding profile 
 

 

VCS Partnership Grants Programme        

2016-2020                                             

Proposed Funding profile 

Source Proposed Grant Pot 

Range

Sum PP&C 

Grant Award

 No. of Orgs 

Potentially 

funded

Maximum Award Average 

Award

% of 

Strands 1-4

% of 

overall 

Pot 

1

Strategic Partners - Borough Wide 

Infrastructure VCS £170,000 - £210,0000 180,000 8 35,000 22500 17.1% 7.3%

2  Strategic Partner – Volunteering VCS £30,000-£40,000 35,000 1 35,000 35000 3.3% 1.4%

3 Strategic Partners – Neighbourhoods VCS £475,000-£525,000 475,000 10 50,000 47500 45.2% 19.3%

4 Delivery Partners VCS £320,000-£400,000 360,000 20 20,000 18000 34.3% 14.7%

Subtotal 1,050,000

Source Contribution to fund Sum PP&C 

Grant Award

 No. of Orgs 

Potentially 

Maximum Award Average 

Award

% of 

Strands 1-4

% of 

overall 

5 Strategic Partners - Advice VCS 1,165,000

Housing 146,000

HASS 95,000

Subtotal 1,406,000

Total 2,456,000 5 £200,000-£530,000 0 100.0% 57.2%

Page 31



 

Page 8 of 12 

 
 

5.7 The VCS Strategy places emphasis on ensuring that Islington’s VCS continues to support 
local residents and communities by maintaining and developing activities and services that 
respond to the needs of local residents and our most marginalised communities.   As a 
result it is proposed that 79.5% of the overall budget in strands 1-4 is allocated to Strategic 
Partner – Neighbourhoods and Delivery Partners, organisations who are often the first point 
of access for local residents and responsible for developing local services.   
 

5.8 The remaining 20.5% of the funding is allocated to infrastructure organisations to provide 
high quality leadership, capacity building and volunteering support for the wider sector. 

 
5.9 In order to promote greater flexibility and transparency, it is proposed that the published 

Grant Funding Prospectuses provide an indication of the maximum award in any strand 
within the programme and an indicative range of funding available in any one programme 
strand. 

 
5.10 As outlined “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 - 

2020”, attached as Appendix 1 to this report, the VCS Development Team will work with 
partners to secure additional resources from a range of sources to support the work of the 
VCS in delivering the outcomes identified in the strategy.  Any additional resources secured 
will be administered through a Supplementary Partnership Grants programme outside of the 
main VCS Partnership Grants Programme 2016-2020. 

 
6 Application Process 

 
6.1 The grants programme will launch on January 15th 2016, when the VCS Partnership Grants 

Prospectus will be published (see Appendix 5). Applications will close March 4th 2016.  A 
series of ‘Meet the VCS Development Team - Question and Answer Sessions’ have been 
scheduled for each of the programme strands to engage VCS organisations and answer any 
queries about the programme and application process. 
 

6.2 The application process for the VCS Partnership Grants Programme will be run on a two 
stage process. In the first stage, applicants will be invited to submit a written application in 
response to the published prospectus.  The prospectus identifies a series of minimum 
standards that organisations must comply with and the desired outcomes for each strand 
which have been established in consultation with relevant officers from other corporate 
departments and the wider VCS. 
 

6.3 In the second stage, shortlisted organisations will be invited to meet with officers from the 
VCS team to discuss their application in detail. Organisational visits will take place in April 
2016 to support the final assessment of applications.  Organisations then have an 
opportunity to refine their submissions before a final assessment and recommendation for 
funding is made. 

 
7 Additional Support - Premises 

 
7.1 “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 - 2020” 

recognises that the current premises arrangements for our VCS partners lack parity. As part 
of the Council’s work on the Corporate Premises Strategy, Officers are exploring the 
potential to establish VCS Hubs and other co-location opportunities.  
 

Page 32



 

Page 9 of 12 

7.2 These proposals will take time to realise and in the interim it is proposed that grants 
provided for organisations include a Transitional Premises Grant, commensurate with 
organisations’ current level of spending on accommodation. This transitional grant may be 
tapered to incentivise organisations to maximise co-location opportunities in alternative 
premises. 

 

8 Implications 
 

8.1 Financial implications: 
 

8.2 As Highlighted in 5.1 of this report, the Council Executive agreed a budget of £1,050,000 for 
the VCS Grant Fund at its meeting in March 2011. Through the use of an underspend in the 
Islington Strategic Partnership budget and contributions from other corporate departments, 
the total spend on grant funding allocated to VCS Organisations in the VCS Grant Fund. 
Programme rose to £1.163 million by 2015/16.  Maintaining the budgets highlighted in 5.1 of 
£1,050,000 for the Partnership Grant programme will enable the council to continue to 
support a wide range of VCS organisations and is affordable. 
 

8.3 At its meeting in February 2015, Council agreed to “Use funding from Section106 to replace 
(not reduce) core council funding for the Voluntary sector”.  This has not been possible to 
achieve to date as S106 is often restricted to capital works in specific localities rather than 
revenue funding which the various grant programmes for the VCS provide.  The Council 
was able to secure one-off funding to bridge the £340K funding gap in 2015/16 but it is 
unlikely to be able to do so in future years. This results in an additional budget pressure of 
£340,000 per annum on core council funding for the VCS which includes the proposed VCS 
Partnership Grants Programme, LIF, Community Chest and Community Festivals Fund and 
Discretionary Rate Relief.  The total budget pressures identified per annum amounts to 
£453,000. 
 

8.4 Legal Implications: 
 

8.4.1 The council has power to provide grants to voluntary and community sector organisations 
under the general power of competence set out in section 1 of the Localism Act 2011.  
 

8.4.2 The provision of these grants is likely to be associated with state aid.  The council can 
provide state aid in relation to 'services of general economic interest’ (SGEI) as detailed in 
Article 106(2) of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union and Schedule 3 
paragraph 4 of the Competition Act 1998.  
 

8.4.3 Aid of up to €500,000 (approximately £407,675) may be provided to an organisation for 
SGEI so long as that organisation has not received de minimis aid from any other source 
in the last three fiscal years which would result in the total de minimis aid to that 
organisation exceeding the €500,000 (Commission Regulation No 360/2012, the “de 
minimis Regulation”).  
 

8.4.4 In the event that an organization has received other de minimis aid that takes it over the 
threshold of £407,675, there is an alternative regime for SGEI exemption for high value 
compensation that may be used. This was established by Commission Decision 
(2012/12/EU, the “Decision”) that came into force on 31 January 2012. Should this be 
necessary the detailed rules on calculation of cost and record keeping and reporting set 
out in the Decision will need to be complied with. 
 

Page 33



 

Page 10 of 12 

8.4.5 In extending the existing grant agreements as proposed in the report the total value of 
grant provided to each organization over the extended period needs to be calculated in 
order to ensure compliance with the SGEI requirements as appropriate.  
 

8.4.6 The council must also ensure that it complies with its duty to secure best value (Section 3 
of the Local Government Act 1999) 
 

8.5 Environmental Implications  
 

8.5.1 There are no environmental implications associated with this report 
 

8.6 Resident Impact Assessment:  
 

8.6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment, the predecessor of RIA’s was completed in 2011 to 
assess the impact of Islington Community Fund on different groups of residents. The 
impact was found to be positive. A copy of the EIA was published as an appendix to the 
Islington Community Fund report to Executive Committee on 17 March 2011.  “Towards a 
Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 - 2020” attached as 
Appendix 1 of this report builds on this existing programme of work.  
 

8.6.2 A primary focus of “Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 
2016 - 2020”  which the Partnership Grants Programme aims to support the delivery of is 
addressing inequality, promoting community cohesion and supporting our most vulnerable 
residents.  The funding programme priorities those organisations which primarily provide 
services for local residents which will respond to their needs.  
 

8.6.3 90% of the overall Partnership Grant Funding programme, (Strands 2, 3,and 5) is targeted 
at direct delivery organisations, those operating at a neighbourhood level and therefore 
most in contact with residents or advice agencies targeting those residents most in need 
through changes to welfare reform.  The remaining 10% of the funding (Strands 1 and 4) is 
targeted at organisations who can provide high quality leadership, support and capacity 
building including volunteering in order to help funded organisations and the wider VCS to 
extend their reach, improve service delivery and respond to residents and communities 
need.  The Strategic partners – Borough Wide Infrastructure, Strand 1 is also intended to 
support a range of organisations that cover  the relevant “protected characteristics” under 
the Equality Act 2010. 
 

8.6.4 At present 44% of all organisations funded through the current VCS grants programme 
(excluding advice) support BME communities exclusively.  This rises to 78% of all 
organisations who would be eligible to apply for the Delivery Partner Strand. In addition, 
organisations that receive grant funding through both the VCS Grants Programme and 
Advice Grants Programme work with BME communities, though not exclusively. There are 
some notable gaps such as the absence of funding for LGBT organisations and an under 
representation amongst youth organisations.  The new Partnership Grants Programme 
provides an opportunity to address any current gaps in provision , reduce duplication of 
services and activities  and ensure that allocated funding reflects the boroughs, 
demographics, structural inequalities and accurately reflects current need. 
 

8.6.5 As detailed in the VCS strategy, The VCS Development team will work with VCS partners, 
in particular the organisations funded through strands 1 and 2 to try and secure additional 
external funding where possible in order to strengthen the role and work of the 
organisations funded through the programme and the wider VCS.  Similarly the corporate 
premises strategy aims to ensure greater parity in terms of premises arrangements for our 

Page 34



 

Page 11 of 12 

VCS partners ensuring that funding is targeted at service delivery rather than premises 
costs. 
 

8.6.6  The services currently provided by advice agencies (Strand 5) are open to all residents 
and the current client profile demonstrates that they are well used by residents with 
protected characteristics covered by equalities legislation.  The advice review has 
highlighted the opportunity to establish a more integrated system of advice and that this 
will be essential if we are to mitigate the impact of welfare reform for some of our most 
vulnerable residents. The proposals are firmly aimed at reducing waiting times and 
improving client access to a broader range of support within a simpler, responsive and 
joined-up service within the financial constraints in which we are operating.  

 
8.6.7 The model avoids placing any particular resident groups at disadvantage, and explicitly 

aims to maintain specialist provision for those that need advice in community languages 
(including BSL), and specialist casework and representation in areas of law that directly 
impact some BME communities such as immigration and asylum. There is a pressing need 
for people supported by the No Recourse to Public Funds team who need access to 
independent casework  and specialist legal support for clients looking to regularise their 
immigration status such as for young people leaving council care.  Around one case per 
month is involved, but these will need to be prioritised by the provider to reduce the 
financial burden on the council which has to support them under the Children’s Act even 
though their immigration status does not entitle them to housing, benefits or to apply for a 
student loan.  

 

9 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 
 

9.1 The current VCS Grants Fund and Advice Fund, part of the Islington Community Fund has 
provided valuable resources to the voluntary and community sector since 2011.  The two 
funding programmes are scheduled to cease on 30th June 2016.  The closure of these two 
funding streams and the current grant funding arrangements with VCS organisations 
provides an opportunity for the council to think afresh about how it wants to support the 
sector to help deliver the priorities of the Council.   
 

9.2 The recommendations in this report reflect the priorities and services outlined in ““Towards 
a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy 2016 - 2020” and the Advice 
Review which identifies how and where VCS organisations can add real value and support 
the council in taking forward its ambitions to promote a fairer Islington.   
 

Final report clearance: 
 
Signed by: 

 

 
 

  
Executive Member for Economic and Community Development 

11th January 2016 

Received by:  
 

 

 Head of Democratic Services Date 
 
 
Report Author: 

 
 
Pete Courtie (Head of Partnerships, Place and Culture) 
 

Tel 
 

020 7527 3021 
 

Page 35



 

Page 12 of 12 

Email Peter.courtie@islington.gov.uk 
 

Appendix 

Appendix 1    Towards a Fairer Islington VCS Strategy 2016-2020. 

Appendix 2  VCS Partnership Grants Application Process and Timeframe 

Appendix 3 Grant Awards through the 2011-2015 VCS Grants Programme 

Appendix 4    Proposed Islington VCS Partnership Grants Programme Funding Allocations. 

Appendix 5   Islington Advice Model 

 

Page 36



2016-
2020

Towards a 
Fairer Islington: 

Voluntary & 
Community Sector 

Strategy

Page 37



2  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  3

Islington’s voluntary and community sector (VCS) lies at the heart of our ambition for a fairer Islington.  It is able to 
reach and develop relationships of trust with residents and communities which statutory services are not always 
able to do.  Some of our most vulnerable residents will first turn to the VCS for support. The sector therefore plays 
an important role in providing a voice for the voiceless, mobilising community action and tackling the causes and 
effects of poverty, inequality, and social and economic exclusion.  

Islington’s VCS organisations have a long tradition of finding new approaches and developing innovative solutions 
to a range of social issues. They have been at the forefront of major social movements and helped change the face 
of both local and national policy.  Building on this history, we want to maintain a vibrant, dynamic and independent 
sector, that is able to respond directly to the evolving interests and changing needs of the neighbourhoods and 
communities we collectively serve.

The VCS also has an important role in achieving community cohesion and other outcomes that we are seeking. This 
includes helping us deliver our public sector equality duty and the specific equality objectives that we have set.  
Islington enjoys good community cohesion, and is a good place to live, study and work for most people.  However, 
we know that we can do more to address the third equality duty - fostering good relations between people from 
different groups.  

This means improving relationships between communities and within communities. It is not just about the  
relationship between different ethnic groups.  It is also about the relationships between young people and older 
people, disabled people and people who are not disabled, people who have lived here a long time and new arrivals, 
people from different neighbourhoods or wards, straight communities and gay communities, affluent and poor 
and so on.  In particular, we want young people from different communities to grow up with a sense of common 
belonging, which also means helping them explore and access positive life opportunities.  

At a time when central government is cutting funding for public services and cutting welfare benefits for those out 
of work and in work, we need strong and independent voluntary and community organisations more than ever.  As 
well as providing day-to-day services to residents, we know that the sector can use its independence and creativ-
ity to challenge social injustices. Islington Council is therefore committed to continuing substantial support for the 
VCS, including maintaining our grants programmes and harnessing external funding opportunities.

This strategy sets out the role we see for voluntary and community sector organisations in the borough in helping 
us to meet our priorities. It outlines the approach that we will take in our work with the sector and makes a series 
of commitments that seek to maximise our collective resources in an increasingly constrained financial context.

The VCS in Islington
Islington has more than 2,200 independent voluntary and community organisations established for charitable,  
social, community or environmental benefit, rather than for profit.  They vary in size, work in diverse fields  
and specialisms, and support a wide range of local beneficiaries (see Appendix A). We recognise that many  
organisations whose presence help to make Islington a vibrant place to live and work, receive no direct financial 
support from the Council. 

Key parts of Islington’s voluntary and community sector have consistently demonstrated their ability to deliver high 
quality services and compete for funding.

Current funding and support for the VCS
Our confidence in the VCS is visible through our contracting arrangements and grant funding. During 2014/15, the 
sector secured Council grants and contracts to the value of £41.15 million, delivering a range of services, many of 
which the Council has a statutory duty to provide (See Appendix B).   Since 2011, 48 organisations have received 
direct grant funding of £2.3 million per annum from the VCS Grants Fund and the Advice Fund, enabling them to 
support and improve the quality of life for thousands of residents. The overall VCS grants fund of £3.5 million also 
includes grant funding provision for Direct Rate Relief, Local Initiatives Fund, Community Festivals Fund and the 
VCS Rescue Fund.

We also support the sector through in-kind arrangements, such as the provision of premises at below market rents, 
the transfer of buildings on long lease, the use of mandatory and discretionary rate relief, or by working directly 
with organisations to develop and deliver new services. 

A harsher financial climate
The Council has faced, and will continue to face unprecedented cuts, which have forced us to reduce our spending 
dramatically.  Between 2010 and 2016 our central government funding will have been cut by half. This includes 
savings of £38 million in 2015-16.  Over the next four years we expect to have to save a further £70 million.  
Within this context, we need to meet our statutory obligations, maintain essential services and respond to  
increasing and changing needs of residents. 

We remain determined to continue making a real difference in the areas that matter most to local people, and the 
voluntary sector is a key partner in this endeavour. However, budget reductions on this level will inevitably result 
in reductions to key Council grants and procurement opportunities. We hope that the VCS can adapt to a harsher 
financial climate by reducing costs, becoming more efficient and diversifying income sources.

Councillor Asima Shaikh
Executive Member for Economic 
and Community Development 

Foreword The Context for Our Strategy

P
age 38



4  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  5

Our Strategy
We see the VCS as key strategic and operational partners in delivering our vision and priorities for a fairer Islington.

Our vision and priorities

Islington’s Council’s Corporate Plan (“Towards a Fairer 
Islington”) sets out the Council’s vision and priorities for 
the next four years, what we will do to achieve them, 
and how we will measure our success.

Our Vision for the borough is to make Islington fairer 
and to create a place where everyone, whatever  
their background, has the opportunity to reach their 
potential and enjoy a good quality of life. Our priorities 
over the next four years are to:

1. Building more Council housing and supporting 
 private renters
2. Help residents who are out of work to find the 
 right job
3. Help residents cope with the rising cost of living
4. Make Islington a place where our residents have 
 a good quality of life
5. Provide residents with good services on a tight 
 budget

Supporting a Dynamic VCS
We want to support Islington’s voluntary and 
community sector to maintain and renew its 
long-standing history of being dynamic, vibrant 
and independent. We want the sector to use its 

independence and ability to be responsive, and to 
identify opportunities to improve quality of life for 
Islington residents in a rapidly changing environment. 

At the same time we need the voluntary and 
community sector to be connected with mainstream 
services, supporting residents to access the range 
of opportunities in the borough that promote 
independence and resilience including help with 
finding the right job. In order to fulfil our ambitions for 
Islington, we need the voluntary and community sector 
to:

 Address and prevent deeper complex social 
 issues and long term challenges that affect our 
 residents. We need the sector to provide innovative 
 solutions and high quality services (both preventative 
 and ameliorative) that improve outcomes for people 
 affected by complex social issues such as, mental 
 health, domestic violence, long-term health 
 conditions and substance misuse. We need the 
 sector to continue, and develop its work with 
 particular population groups such as young people, 
 carers, elderly residents and people with disabilities 
 in these areas.

 Support residents to be independent and 
 resilient. We recognise that the social issues 
 affecting the quality of life for Islington residents 
 are often the consequence of structural issues such 
 as the social isolation of older people, or experiences 
 of disaffection and alienation amongst the young. 
 In order to ensure that Islington is a place of 
 opportunity for all of its residents we will need to 
 work with organisations that support individuals to 
 be independent and resilient and to access the range 
 of opportunities available in the borough, for example 
 through building capacities and skills for 
 independent living, securing financial stability or 
 sign-posting to preventative services. We need this 
 work to improve outcomes for vulnerable residents. 
 Where appropriate, we need the sector to support 
 residents to find the right job.

Our Strategy

Our Vision
We’re determined to make  
Islington fairer: to create a  
place where everyone, whatever 
their background has the same 
opportunity to reach their  
potential and enjoy a good  
quality of life

We need Islington’s 
VCS to work 
independently and 
in partnership with 
mainstream services 
to…

 Address and prevent complex   
 social issues.

 Support residents to be 
 resilient and independent.

 Promote cohesion and 
 champion the needs of 
 Islington’s diverse 
 communities.

 Mobilise community action 
 and support neighbourhoods 
 to develop and grow.

 Be dynamic and responsive to 
 local need in creative ways.

 Provide and signpost residents 
 to high quality advice and 
 guidance

We will support 
Islington’s voluntary 
and community 
sector through…

 Funding: Including 
 small-grants and partnership 
 grants programmes, 
 discretionary rate relief, and 
 a bespoke training and 
 capacity building fund.

 Contracting: Commissioning 
 organisations to deliver 
 services and ensuring social 
 value is included in our 
 approach to commissioning.

 Premises: Developing a 
 borough-wide premises 
 strategy that maximises the 
 use of our buildings, and 
 enables organisations to use 
 these for income generation.

 Working strategically with 
 key partners: Including 
 the VCS and Council 
 departments to provide 
 leadership and build the 
 capacity of the sector, 
 promote volunteering, 
 support fundraising, establish 
 networks, maximise our 
 collective impact in 
 neighbourhoods, and ensure 
 a coordinate whole-Council 
 approach to the VCS

P
age 39



6  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  7

 Promote community cohesion and champion 
 equality. We want to ensure that Islington is a place 
 where people have a sense of common belonging 
 and feel safe, regardless of background or life stage. 
 We need the sector to respond to the needs of 
 Islington’s diverse communities by championing 
 equality, promoting positive relations and cohesion 
 across, between and within different communities, 
 combatting hate crime, and ensuring participation 
 and access to services for all sections of the 
 community.

 Mobilise community action and support 
 neighbourhoods to develop and grow. We want 
 to support organisations that enable local 
 communities and neighbourhoods to develop and 
 grow. Across the borough, we want to mobilise 
 community action, and to ensure that community 
 resources, skills, knowledge and spaces are used to 
 their full potential. At a neighbourhood level, we 
 want the voluntary and community sector to work 
 with us to ensure that residents are able to access 
 animated community spaces and a coherent offer of 
 high quality activities, services and opportunities 
 that meet local needs.

 Provide or sign-post residents to appropriate, 
 high-quality advice and guidance when 
 residents are faced with difficulties. We want to 
 ensure that residents are able to access high quality 
 advice, guidance and legal support when faced with 
 difficulties. We recognise that many residents will 
 first turn to local voluntary and community sector 
 organisations for support. We therefore need the 
 sector to combine its capacity to reach some of our 
 most vulnerable residents with the ability to link 
 residents to professional advice services and 
 mainstream provision.

The support we will give the VCS
There are four ways in which we will support Islington’s 
voluntary and community sector to be key partners in 
delivering our vision of a fairer Islington, the details of 
which are set out later in this document.

 Funding: including partnership grants and small 
 grants programmes, a bespoke training and capacity 
 building fund, and discretionary rate relief.

 Commissioning and procurement: Commissioning  
 organisations to deliver services, and ensuring social 
 value is included in our approach to commissioning.

 Premises: developing a borough-wide premises 
 strategy that maximises the use of our buildings, and 
 enables organisations to share premises, reduce costs 
 and maximise income generation.

 Working strategically with key partners to build the 
 capacity of the sector, promote volunteering, 
 support fundraising, establish networks, maximise 
 our collective impact in neighbourhoods, and ensure 
 a coordinated whole-Council approach to the VCS

The sorts of organisations we will 
we support
To ensure that Islington’s voluntary and community  
sector can support local residents and communities,  
we want to support a range of organisations, including:

 Smaller organisations that provide activities and 
 deliver services at a neighbourhood level or to 
 particular population groups.

 Community anchors and neighbourhood centres 
 that are able to coordinate, and curate a coherent 
 offer of local services in response to the needs of 
 the local community.

 Thematic networks, which represent and articulate 
 the needs of disadvantaged and excluded 
 communities, and that ensure that services respond 
 to the specific needs of different population groups.

 Organisations that lead, challenge, and support the 
 sector as a whole, and that can work in partnership 
 with the Council to champion change, resilience and 
 innovation in the sector. We need voluntary and 
 community sector organisations that are able to 
 provide strong and visible leadership to the wider 
 sector, to inspire organisations to continuously 
 improve, to share best practice, and advocate on 
 behalf of the sector. This could be through 
 organisational development services to local groups, 
 supporting organisations to attract and recruit 
 volunteers, bringing external investment into the 
 borough; or establishing networks to facilitate joint 
 funding applications.

Our Approach
Our Voluntary and Community Sector Strategy  
responds to the needs that we have identified, the 
views expressed by local organisations in our  
consultation (Appendix C), and the Council’s priorities 
for the borough over the coming years.

Our primary focus is on improving outcomes for  
residents. We’re determined to make Islington fairer and 
to ensure that everyone, whatever their background 
has the same opportunity to reach their potential and 
enjoy a good quality of life. We want to work with  
organisations that can help us achieve this aim.

We want to support local organisations to operate  
in a different and fast changing environment. And  
so, our strategy is firmly focussed on helping local 
organisations to become more independent, financially 
resilient and better equipped to meet the challenges 
that lie ahead. 

We recognise the important role of core funding  
and small grants for the voluntary and community  
sector. Funding and grants of this nature provide a 
foundation from which organisations can grow and  
develop responsive initiatives. We also know that over 
the next few years there are particular areas where 
Council spending will remain significant. We want  
to ensure that voluntary and community sector  
organisations that deliver high quality services and 
social value are well placed to be our providers of first 
choice. 

Despite these commitments, we recognise that  
the Council’s relationship with the voluntary and  
community sector cannot simply be based on funding.  
Both the Council and the voluntary and community 
sector will have to adapt, be flexible, identify  
efficiencies and collaborate in order to identify  
opportunities for mutual benefit.

Our approach therefore focuses on continuing to  
build and develop strong, outcome driven partnerships 
between the whole Council and the VCS. These  
partnerships will need to leverage the financial  
resources, physical space, and expertise that our  
voluntary and community sector organisations require 
to be independent, financially resilient and responsive 
to local need.

With the primary aim of improving outcomes for  
residents, we will look to use our resources to work 
with the sector to establish the infrastructure it needs 
to deliver high quality services and be resilient. We 
want to see a better connected sector, with more  
collaboration and sharing of resources between  
organisations and groups who share similar goals or 
who are serving the same communities. We want this 
infrastructure to support organisations whether we 
directly fund them or not. 

The Islington Compact sets out how local statutory and 
voluntary sector organisations have agreed to work 
together to improve the quality of life for residents and 
will be refreshed over the lifespan of the strategy.

Delivering the Strategy
Delivering Islington’s VCS strategy will require a cross 
Council approach, including commitment from a wide 
range of service directorates. We are committed to 
working across the organisation to ensure that the 
whole Council’s approach to the voluntary and  
community sector is coherent, and that our energies 
and resources are maximised. 

The Voluntary and Community Sector Committee  
oversees the Council’s engagement with the  
Islington community and voluntary sector and to ensure 
value for money and fairness in the allocation of Council 
resources to the sector. 

The Council’s Third Sector Strategic Forum will serve 
as the primary officer mechanism to ensure that the 
Council adopts a consistent and coordinated approach 
to its engagement with the VCS. 

The Council’s Voluntary and Community Sector  
Development Team will be tasked with coordinating  
the Third Sector Strategic Forum. The team will be 
responsible for establishing an annual work plan, with 
clear milestones and reporting mechanisms to deliver 
the VCS strategy. 

Playing a role as advocate and challenger, the team  
will develop stronger links with key corporate  
departments and services, and with Islington’s  
voluntary and community sector. The Team will  
establish a work plan with our key partners to achieve 
the aspirations set out in this strategy, which will be 
reviewed on an annual basis.

P
age 40



8  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  9

Our consultation highlighted funding as the key 
concern of Islington’s voluntary and community sector. 
We want the VCS to be able to focus on the delivery 
of its core services.  Wherever possible we will try 
and draw together funding programmes to simplify 
and streamline application processes, and establish 
appropriate and proportionate monitoring processes  

In recognition of the value of grants to local 
organisations and the potential for these to lever 
additional resources into Islington, we will look for 
opportunities to develop our grant and commissioning 
arrangements.

The Islington Community Fund
The Council is committed to continuing grant funding, 
we will maintain the Islington Community Fund, which 
will include a small grants programme, and continue 
our partnerships grants programme which will contain 
a responsive organisational development and training 
fund.

1) Small Grants Programmes
We will continue to support a range of local voluntary 
and community organisations through our small grants 
programme. These grants programmes are designed  
to support smaller organisations to add value to their 
programmes or to run one-off projects or activities 
often at a neighbourhood level and will include:

 The Community Chest programme: Small one-off 
 grants for local organisations

 The Local Initiatives Fund: To support ward-specific 
 projects and initiatives

 The Community Festivals Fund: For borough-wide 
 events that support the Council’s wider priorities 
 around equalities, community cohesion and 
 place-shaping.

2) Partnership Grants Programmes
We will offer financial support to a range of local  
voluntary and community organisations and  
consortia of organisations through four-year funding 
agreements. These will be run on a two plus two year 
basis in order to allow us to have greater flexibility,  
create new opportunities throughout the four year 
funding cycle where resources allow, and respond to 
changing needs of the community and the sector. 

These grants will be available for organisations that are 
well run; provide effective services; have the potential 
to develop and where there is a strategic need for what 
they do and where they operate.

Our Partnership Grants Programme will be available for 
small organisations that deliver core services through  
to those that provide leadership and support to the 
sector as a whole. There will be three strands to our 
Partnership Grants Programme, including:

 A Delivery Partnership Programme: For organisations 
 that work directly with residents to improve 
 outcomes in line with the priorities identified above.

 A Strategic Partnership Programme: For organisations 
 that provide leadership, establish networks and build 
 the capacity of the VCS

 An Advice and Guidance Partnership Programme: For 
organisations that deliver high quality, specialist advice, 
guidance and legal support.

We want to ensure that the voluntary and community 
sector organisations are able to respond and adapt to 
challenging circumstances over the coming years. 
In addition to funding leadership organisations we will 
establish a small organisational development and 
training fund and work with a framework of providers 
to allow organisations to request or deliver specialist 
bespoke support according to need. For example 
specialist support with fundraising, management, 
preparation for commissioning, governance, or 
marketing and communications.

Discretionary Rate Relief
We will continue to provide discretionary rate relief to 
organisations with premises in the borough that provide 
local benefit. All registered charities will continue to 
receive mandatory rate relief from the Council 
which covers 80% of their rates.  We will also give 
discretionary rate relief for locally focussed voluntary 
and community sector organisations to either cover the 
remaining 20% (or all of their rates if they don’t qualify 
for mandatory rate relief).

Funding

Council and other Public Sector 
Commissioning and Procurement
We want more local organisations that deliver high 
quality services and social value, whether large or 
small, individual applicants or consortia, to attain 
greater financial resilience by securing contracts from 
the Council and other statutory organisations such as 
the Clinical Commissioning Group.

The financial context in which we will be operating is 
likely to result in reductions to the funding available 
through Council contracts; collectively we will need to 
bid for external opportunities and leverage resources 
into the borough. To do this we need to make sure that 
the sector is equipped to compete with professional 
external voluntary and private sector providers.  
We also want voluntary and community organisations 
to be able to participate in public sector commissioning 
processes, helping to shape the terms of procurement 
processes in order to ensure that our tenders reflect 
the social value contribution the sector can make. 

To do this we will:
 Work in partnership across the Council and with

 other public bodies to establish joint commissioning 
 and grant funding arrangements where appropriate.

 Review our existing commissioning arrangements, 
 monitor the proportion of contracts we award to 
 Islington-based voluntary and community sector 
 organisations and identify opportunities where local 
 VCS organisations could deliver in terms of quality 
 and social value.

 Review current procurement and commissioning 
 systems to make them simpler and easier to navigate 
 and bid for

 To work with our larger VCS organisation and 
 encourage them to support consortium bids which 
 unlock opportunities for smaller VCS organisations.

 Produce a user guide for the local voluntary sector to 
 explain the process and ways in which it can benefit.  

 Strengthen the value of community benefit and 
 social value in our assessment of tenders.

 Provide advance notice to the sector of upcoming 
 opportunities to tender. 

 Build the capacity of organisations and offer 
 brokerage services to help them access these funds, 
 including helping them to cost and demonstrate the 
 impact of their work. 

Commissioning

P
age 41



10  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  11

The high cost of premises makes Islington an expensive 
borough for the voluntary sector to operate in. Smaller 
organisations, particularly those in buildings owned by 
private landlords, are finding it increasingly difficult to 
meet costs and the sector needs help to find and 
access good quality accommodation at reasonable 
rents. Rising costs in Islington are placing many
organisations in an uncertain position and fuelling the 
demand for affordable premises.  

We want to help the sector to cut costs, share 
resources and access suitable accommodation. We will 
develop a Council premises strategy which will take 
account of the needs of the sector and will:

 Improve the consistency and transparency of 
 Council leases of Council owned premises occupied 
 by voluntary organisations and make clear what 
 outcomes we would expect to see for in-kind 
 support of this nature.

 Make sure that the Council’s property portfolio is 
 allocated efficiently and seek to accommodate more 
 organisations – particularly in underused buildings.

 Explore ways in which non-residential premises on 
 housing estates can be used to benefit local 
 voluntary and community organisations.

 To explore, where appropriate, how planning gain 
 can be used to enable the VCS to access affordable, 
 quality premises.

 Identify and promote co-location opportunities for 
 VCS organisations to further develop neighbourhood 
 and thematic clusters of interest, and to help 
 organisations to cut costs by sharing associated 
 common services such as IT, resources, 
 administration, or to support bulk purchasing.

 Broker voluntary sector access to public premises.

Premises

Delivering Islington’s VCS strategy will require a 
whole-Council approach, including commitment from a 
wide range of service directorates. Within the financial 
context in which we are operating, it is imperative that 
the decisions made by the Council in relation to 
funding, contracts, premises and capacity 
development are coherent and consistent. There are 
numerous opportunities such as the pooling of funding 
and cross-departmental partnerships. The Third Sector 
Strategic Forum will serve as the primary arena to 
raise changes that will impact on organisations in the 
voluntary and community sector.

The Council’s complex relationship with the sector 
will primarily be managed by the new Voluntary and 
Community Sector Development Team. This team will 
be tasked with advancing the actions outlined in the 
VCS strategy.

In addition, this team will will work with the key 
leadership and networking partnership organisations to 
ensure that our work, and the sector itself, creates an 
enabling environment for organisations working with 
local residents. This enabling environment will include 
opportunities for capacity building, volunteering, 
fundraising support, networking and neighbourhood 
working.

Capacity Building
Through our Partnerships Grant Programme, we will 
support local voluntary and community sector 
organisations to deliver high quality capacity building 
and training opportunities for organisations in the 
borough. We will work with our strategic partners 
including Cripplegate and local businesses, particularly 
through the Big Alliance to:

 Establish a borough-wide offer of relevant and 
 responsive support in areas of need, such as 
 fundraising, governance, organisational strategy 
 and development, business planning, managing 
 volunteers, quality standards, monitoring and 
 evaluation.

 Assess the range of capacity building and training 
 opportunities available to organisations in the 
 borough and where there are gaps provide grants 
 for organisations to develop bespoke opportunities.

Volunteering
Volunteers are the backbone for many organisations 
and some groups rely entirely on unpaid help. Although 
the sector leads by example, working with volunteers 
is resource intensive. This presents a challenge for small 
groups with limited capacity to take on the task of 
recruiting, inducting and preparing volunteers for
placements. We will work with our partners to:

 Ensure that infrastructure is in place to recruit and 
 prepare volunteers.

 Ensure access to support for small groups to deal 
 with the necessary regulations and policies for 
 volunteers.

 Support organisations to offer placements, identify 
 suitable candidates and manage volunteers.

 Work with other funders to find ways to increase  
 the capacity of core funded organisations to use 
 volunteers, particularly through resources that 
 they can share.  

 Maximise the benefits of volunteering from local 
 businesses to help organisations develop – 
 particularly professional services such as finance, 
 business planning, marketing and developing 
 commercial services or trading arms.

Fundraising Support
We will work more strategically with other local, 
national and international funders such as Cripplegate 
Foundation, Islington Giving, London Councils, the Big 
Lottery, and others, in order to help local organisations 
bring additional resources into the borough. This will 
require us to actively pursue opportunities, broker 
relationships and support consortia of voluntary 
organisations to unlock funding.

Where we can, we will join bids for projects that meet 
our priorities.  Where we can’t, for example when 
programmes are primarily targeted at the voluntary 
sector, we may endorse the application and provide 
information and expertise to help organisations write 
successful applications.

Working Strategically with Key Partners

P
age 42



12  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  13

We will work with our partners to:
 Establish one-to-one support and sharing of 

 fundraising expertise across organisations.

 Identify trusts and external grant funding and help 
 organisations to take advantage of these.

 Support fundraising and bid-writing – particularly 
 joint voluntary sector/Council bids (e.g. the major 
 ESF employment programmes).

 Develop and maintain stronger relationships with 
 key funders to attract and direct investment into the 
 borough.

 Identify private sector funding and maximise the 
 benefit from corporate social responsibility 
 programmes of leading firms located in the borough, 
 linking in with the Big Alliance initiative.

 Promote and support the development of 
 appropriate business models such as social enterprise 
 models, community interest companies and trading 
 subsidiaries for charities. 

Networks
We see formal and informal networks of organisations, 
organised around thematic priorities (such as 
unemployment, health, volunteering, or cohesion 
agendas) or demographic interest groups as an 
effective way to advance common issues, gain 
efficiencies and promote partnerships for collaboration 
and joint-funding applications. 

We will work with partnership grant funded 
organisations to ensure that they establish open, 
inclusive and effective networks that deliver value to 
their members

Neighbourhood-based approaches
Across Islington too many community spaces are not 
utilised to their full potential. There is an opportunity 
to join-up the resources that different Council 
departments invest in local neighbourhoods to 
ensure that they deliver a coherent and relevan
neighbourhood offer.

Based on an analysis of indices of deprivation and the 
prevalence of long-term health conditions at Super 
Output Area level, six key geographical areas will be 
targeted in the first instance for Place Based
 Community Development Plans: the Bemerton Estate, 
New River Green, the Andover and Six Acres, Crouch 
Hall Estate, Elthorne Estate and Mayville Estate. As part 
of this we will work with our partners to: 

 Identify and evaluate the quality of the local 
 community offer in relation to spend and need.

 Identify gaps and find innovative ways to work 
 with local VCS organisations to address these.

 Develop a programme of action jointly with Housing 
 and other Council departments to improve the c
 oherence and quality of services and opportunities 
 offered at neighbourhood community centres.

Background
The size, diversity, emergent, and sometimes transient 
nature of civil society organisations operating within 
Islington, presents challenges to those interested in 
establishing an accurate and complete picture of the 
borough’s voluntary and community sector.

The picture presented below brings together 
information from a number of sources including: 
Voluntary Action Islington, Octopus Network, London 
Voluntary Sector Council and London Borough Islington 
in order to provide a starting point for the Council’s VCS 
strategy. 

How many VCS organisations 
operate in the borough?
Islington’s voluntary and community sector is very 
diverse and includes organisations of all types and sizes. 
The local scene is further complicated by the presence 
of charities with a national or international focus 
headquartered here but that don’t deliver local services.
 
In 2014 more than 2,244 charitable organisations 
were operating in the borough.  1,169 were registered 
charities while other types of non-profit making 
organisations, including community interest companies, 
made up the rest.  However, this data doesn’t include 
information on the many small unregistered community 
groups in the borough.  Neither does it accurately re-
flect the number of active registered voluntary 
organisations.  

In the same year it was estimated that 400 to 450 
locally focussed organisations were actively operating 
in the borough.   If we also include small groups, such 
as tenants and residents associations and organisations 

that have engaged with or received some type of 
support from the Council – including rate relief and 
small grants – approximately 700 is a reasonably 
accurate reflection of the number of local organisations 
that our strategy needs to address. However, it must 
also be recognised that up to 20 groups at any one 
time will be in the process of starting-up. 

What types of organisation exist?
Table 2 shows a segmentation of the voluntary and 
community sector in Islington on the basis of size 
measured in terms of their income. The activities and 
needs of large voluntary organisations are very 
different from those of small community-based 
organisations.  It is therefore important to gain an 
understanding of the sector in order to know how 
best to, not only provide support, but also to identify 
effective partnership opportunities.  

The majority or VCS organisations in Islington are grass 
roots or small organisations. Approximately 40% of the 
VCS organisations operating in the borough are grass 
roots organisations with no paid staff and an income of 
less than £10,000.  30% are small organisations with at 
least one member of staff and registered charity status 
and an income of between £10,000 and £50,000.
This situation demonstrates the importance of ensuring 
opportunities such as small grants programmes for local 
grass roots organisations that have extensive reach into 
local communities.

Approximately 9% of VCS organisations, many of 
whom have an Islington focus, have an income of 
between £250,000 and £1 million plus (Tiers 4 &5). 
These organisations can be considered as strategic 
actors within the sector, both in terms of delivery and 
infrastructure. 

Appendix A: A picture of the VCS in Islington

P
age 43



14  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  15

Type of organisation

Tier 1: Grass roots run by 
volunteers.  New and emerging 
groups.  No paid staff, largely 
unregistered and unlikely to own 
premises.

Tier 2: Usually with at least one 
member of staff and registered 
charity status.

Tier 3: Small/medium Islington 
focussed with at least one 
co-ordinator plus other staff.  
Registered charity and/or 
company status.

Tier 4: Medium, mainly Islington 
focussed.

Tier 5: Large established local and 
regional charities.

Tier 6: National and regional 
charities. Not Islington focussed. 
Largely located in south of the 
borough.

Income

Under 
£10,000

£10,000 to 
£50,000

£50,000 to 
£250,000

£250,000
to £1 million

£1 million
and over

£10 million 
plus

Number 
(approx)

300

250

115

40

30

Under 30

Examples

Scouts and Guides; friends of 
parks groups; community festivals; 
tenants and residents associations, 
estate based community groups. 

Small BME organisations; 
community arts, networks and 
forums, older people’s groups.

Community centres, mid-sized 
BME organisations. 

Mental health, specialist advice 
groups, larger nurseries.

Large community hubs, social 
care and large children’s services 
providers.

NSPCC, Shelter, Amnesty 
International.

Table 2: Islington VCS Organisations Categorisation by Size

What do these organisations do?
These 700 organisations are engaged in a range of 
activities and many organisations are involved in 
cross-cutting work that cover a range of areas, so it 
is difficult to classify  them within distinct sectors of 
activity.  The table below shows the primary focus for 
local organisations that we have been able to map. 

Where are Islington’s VCS 
organisations located?
Islington is a small borough and the services and 
activities delivered by local voluntary organisations 
appear reasonably spread throughout, although we 
estimate that Finsbury Park ward has the highest 
number (15% of groups, but most are very small). 

Small groups are often found in wards in the north of 
the borough, where a number of important community 
centres and voluntary sector hubs are located. These 
centres often host smaller organisations within their 
premises.  The number of organisations found in the 
north of the borough may also be reflective of the 
nature of the communities in this part of the borough.  
For example, Finsbury Park ward is the most deprived 
ward in Islington and also has the largest black and 
minority ethnic population in Islington.  The vast 
majority of organisations in this ward reflect the needs 
of these communities.   

Islington has a long and proud history of hosting major 
national and international charities and voluntary 
organisations. Typically these organisations are located 
in the south of the borough. 

Table 1: Voluntary and Community Organisations:  
Primary Thematic Focus – Source: National Council 
for Voluntary Organisations  commissioned by 
London Voluntary Service Council (2013)

Type/activity focus

TRAs and TMOs

Arts and culture

BME/refugees

Children

Young people

Environmental

Faith

Health

Sport and leisure

Neighbourhood Regeneration

Community Centres (general)

Older people 

Housing/homelessness

Disability

Women

Education/training

Employment

Networks

Adult social care

Business support

Volunteering

VCS Infrastructure

Other

TOTAL

Number

85

79

72

66

53

41

33

32

25

22

21

17

13

12

11

10

7

6

5

4

4

2

61

676

Figure 1: VCS Location by Ward (approximate) 

% of Islington’s VCS 
organisations (large 
and small)

Finsbury Park

Barnsbury

Bunhill 

Clerkenwell

Highbury East 

Hillrise 

Caledonian

Canonbury

Mildmay

Highbury West

Junction

St Mary’s

Holloway

St George’s

Tollington

St Peter’s

16%10%4% 14%8%2% 12%6%0%

P
age 44



16  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  17

Highbury East

Highbury West

Mildmay

Canonbury

St. Mary’s

St. Peter’s

Bunhill

Clerkenwell

Barnsbury

Caledonian

Holloway

St. George’s

Finsbury Park

Tollington

Junction

Hillrise

What are Community Centres  
and Hubs?
There are a range of community centres in the borough 
– some that are Council funded, some that are located 
on housing estates, and some that are independently 
financed and run. 

These community venues offer a range of services 
both directly and indirectly to communities at the 
neighbourhood level, for example, early years provision, 
after schools clubs, youth clubs, over 55s clubs that 
provide lunch and tackle older people’s social isolation.  
They bring together a wide cross section of Islington’s 
diverse local communities and play a key role in 
supporting the Council’s community cohesion agenda’s.

Much of the activity delivered in our community 
centres is developed and delivered in partnership with a 
range of voluntary and community sector organisations 
operating in Islington.  The centres play a key role in 
supporting the work of the wider VCS and connecting 
local residents to the boroughs wider VCS offer. 
Community centres have a key role to play in 
supporting smaller grass roots organisations, 
providing not only accommodation for activities 
but providing informal advice and support.

Between 2011 and 2015, the Council provided 
funding for 12 Community Hubs supported by 
Octopus Community Network through its core 
grants programme.

In 2014/15 we spent £41 million with the voluntary 
sector.  The largest commissioner is Adult Social Care, 
followed by Children’s Services.  Voluntary and  
community sector organisations are also commissioned 
to deliver contracts in the areas of Community Safety 
and Environment and Regeneration.

Appendix B: Summary of Council VCS expenditure – contracts and grants

Council Voluntary Sector Contracts and Grants

Figure 2: Islington VCS Hubs and Community Centres

Service Area

Adult Social Services (Including public health)

Children’s Services

Chief Executive’s VCS Grants

Public Health

London Council’s Grants

Community Safety

Environment and Regeneration

Discretionary Rate Relief

Local Initiatives Fund*

Rescue Fund

Community Chest 

Finance and Housing

Total 

£26.35 million

£7.51 million

£2.3 million

£1.98 million

£1.57 million

£548,400

£448,093

£450,000

£240,000

£250,000

£200,000

£189,196

Community Hubs 
1  St Luke’s Parochial Trust
2  Mildmay Community Partnership 
3  Caxton House Community Centre
4  Hornsey Lane Estate Community Association
5  Hanley Crouch Community Association 
6  Whittington Park Community Association 
7  Highbury Vale Blackstock Trust
8  Highbury Roundhouse Youth & Community Centre
9  Hilldrop Area Community Association

10  Holloway Neighbourhood Group
11  Finsbury Park Community Hub
12  Peel Institute
13  Bemerton Villages Management Organisation

Housing Community Centre 
14  Finsbury Unity Room Community Centre
15  Brunswick Estate Community Room
16  Vibast Community Centre
17  Peregrine Tenants Hall
18  Rahere House Community Centre/Kings Square Estate
19  Gambier Hall/Betty Brunker Hall
20  Providence Place Community Centre
21  Walter Sickert Community Centre
22  Half Moon Crescent Community Centre
23  Almorah Community Centre
24  Popham Estate Community Centre
25  Bentham Court Community Centre
26  Weston Rise Community Centre
27  New Orleans Community Centre
28  St Johns Community Centre
29  Girdlestone Estate Community Centre
30  Harry Rice Community Centre
31  Hargrave Hall
32  Holly Hall Community Centre
33  Aubert Community Centre
34  Stephens Ink Community Centre
35  York Way Community Centre
36  Chesnuts Community Centre
37  Birchmore Hall
38  Williamson Street Community Centre
39  Bennett Court Community Centre
40  Durham Road Community Room
41  Westbourne Community Centre
42  Nailour Hall
43  Lorraine Estate Community Centre
44  Margery Street Community Centre

1

2

3

4

5

6
7

9

10

11

12

13

14 15

16

17
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

29
30 31

32

33
34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

P
age 45



18  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  19

A consultation on the Council’s support to local 
voluntary organisations was held from 19 June 2014 
to 15 August 2014. This consultation focussed on the 
programmes in Islington Community Fund. 

During this eight week period we received 41 
responses including notes from a workshop facilitated 
by Voluntary Action Islington which was attended by 
30 representatives of local organisations. 

Around 70% of responses were from organisations 
currently receiving financial support from the VCS 
Grants Fund or the Advice Fund programmes.

A full version analysis of the VCS consultation is 
available on the Council Webpages. Below is a summary 
of the key issues raised by respondents.

Supporting the Local Voluntary and 
Community Sector
Partnership Working 
A strong partnership between the Council and the 
voluntary sector was seen as key to meeting the 
needs of local residents in the difficult times that 
lie ahead. There should be regular dialogue with key 
representative bodies and greater VCS involvement in 
setting priorities, designing procurements and agreeing 
outcomes. 

Some respondents felt that, over time, the VCS should 
aim for increased independence with a less dependent 
relationship and more of a partnership of equals with 
the Council.

Others suggested that there should be more emphasis 
on collaboration, for example in sharing information 
and attracting additional resources to the borough and 
argued that the Council has a leadership role in coordi-
nating funding opportunities and bringing organisations 
together, a ‘catalyst for creativity’.

Funding
Funding Landscape
Respondents understood the financial 
uncertainty facing the Council beyond 2015/16 
and felt that introducing 2 + 2 agreements is a fair 
approach in the circumstances. There should be a clear 
and transparent process, compliant with the Compact, 
for the current review of funding and any subsequent 
reviews from 2017.

Several people highlighted the value in continuing to 
support organisations that have built up relationships 
and trust with residents, arguing that this can’t just be 
transferred from one agency to another. However this 
shouldn’t mean sticking with historical patterns that no 
longer meet the needs of our communities.

Mixed views were expressed about social enterprises 
and trading models. Some felt these had a lot of po-
tential to support innovation and generate new income 
streams. Others were more cautious, perceiving the 
opportunities for income generation as modest, and in 
most cases not as a viable replacement for grants and 
contracts.  

Core Grants Funding
There was a strong feeling that the Council should 
continue to give grants and a view that commissioning 
often focuses on the wrong areas. There was 
unanimous support for retaining an Islington 
Community Fund. It is seen as a successful approach 
which provides longer term funding for organisations 
delivering strategic priorities as well as smaller grants 
for groups responding to very local or specific 
community needs.

Users should be the most important consideration 
and the Council should support effective local grass 
roots organisations with a good track record in serving 
residents.  Many felt that larger organisations tended to 
get Council funding at the expense of smaller groups.  
The Council should consider top-slicing its large 
contracts to allow small groups to benefit.

The Council should have fair and open funding 
programmes and should check what organisations 
actually do when awarding grants.

Small Grant Programmes
There was overwhelming agreement that current 
small grant programmes should continue. Islington 
Community Chest generated more comment and 
support than Local Initiatives Fund (LIF). Some 
respondents argued that LIF should be more 
transparent, with one suggesting a Dragons Den type 
approach involving ward partnerships. Opportunities for 
Islington Giving fundraising to complement small grants 
programmes should be explored. The two programmes 
could be better aligned to avoid the risk of duplicating 
funding awards when resources are scarce. 

Fund Priorities
The Council’s commitment to addressing the key areas 

of concern to local residents – jobs, housing and rising 
cost of living – is strongly endorsed by the voluntary 
sector. Many other priorities were mentioned including 
health and wellbeing, community safety and cohesion, 
and provision for children and young people and for 
older people.

Feedback indicated very high levels of support for 
continuing with current grant programmes: core 
funding to strategically important local organisations 
(VCS Grants Fund); independent advice provision 
(Advice Fund); discretionary rate relief; and small grants 
(Community Chest and Local Initiatives Fund). 

Joint Working and Funding
The Council should hold the ring and play a bigger 
role in bringing organisations together and creating 
partnerships.  Brokering relationships and putting 
organisations in touch with each other for mutual 
benefit is also important.

Forcing groups to collaborate is not possible (the VCS is 
independent), but they could strongly be encouraged.  
Similarly, good organisations could widen their remit (if 
in line with their mission) to work with others.  

The Council needs to involve the VCS at a strategic 
level, rather than simply inviting it to apply for funding.  
This would encourage organisations to develop 
consortia and partnership bids.  Joint funding of 
organisation from larger pots would also help smaller 
groups to work together (or with larger organisations).  

The Council should also organise events, seminars and 
provide information to promote understanding and help 
groups to focus on the most pressing equalities issues. 
 
Monitoring of Performance 
Various comments were made about how the Council 
monitors performance. Outcomes were preferred to 
rigid targets – using a key performance framework and 
allowing flexibility for changing priorities. Monitoring 
should be proportionate and should celebrate strong 
performance as well as pointing out weaknesses. Some 
organisations would like more dialogue about priorities 
and more face-to-face-meetings with grants officers.
Council systems and monitoring were viewed as 
unnecessarily bureaucratic involving too much 
paperwork and onerous reporting requirements, 
particularly for small grants where administration 
cost exceed the value of the grant.  Monitoring should 
be proportionate and the Council should have clearer, 
simpler systems - and use plain English.

Premises
Affordability and Availability
Islington is a very expensive borough for the voluntary 
sector to operate in and the most popular answer by 
far was support from the Council to provide affordable 
premises and discounted or peppercorn rents. Smaller 
organisations, particularly those in buildings owned by 
private landlords, are finding it increasingly difficult to 
meet their premises costs. 

There was strong support for making better use of 
premises, both the Council’s own space and that owned 
by the voluntary sector. Schools and faith properties 
were cited as examples of buildings with spare capacity 
outside their normal hours of operation. Many agencies 
are looking for more flexible space and new community 
locations to deliver their outreach services. 

Community Cohesion, Engagement 
and Advocacy
Communities must have opportunities to feedback 
their views and the Council has a role in creating and 
supporting this - but it should remain flexible on what 
it funds.  What is important is that activities increase 
inclusion and reduce marginalisation, including for a 
wider community beyond the protected characteristics 
such as Irish, white working class residents and people 
living within the same neighbourhood.

Forums and Organisations
The importance of forums and networks (and that the 
Council should core fund them) was stressed, although 
this shouldn’t necessarily extend to funding a separate 
forum for each of the nine protected characteristics.  
They should all be community led however.  There were 
also calls for forums to have stronger links with local 
policy makers.  

Support Needs of the Sector
All responses highlighted the importance of continuing 
to fund support for the sector. The most requested 
services were fundraising, training, information, 
premises, marketing and communications, networking, 
and HR. Many people commented on the difficulties 
their organisations are facing and the challenges of 
becoming more resilient. They would like more help 
with managing finance, ‘business’ planning, building  
partnerships and consortia, and developing new income 
streams. Training in social enterprise, trading and mutual 
support were also mentioned. The support needs of  
organisations are directly related to their size and scale.

Appendix C: Summary of VCS Consultation on the Council’s 
Support to Local Voluntary Organisations

P
age 46



20  Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy Towards a Fairer Islington: Voluntary & Community Sector Strategy  21

Support Required

 Setting up – charity registration, organisational etc. 
 Using volunteers – eg DBS checks.
 Practical development – finance management, trustees, developing policies etc.
 Fundraising inc. small grants applications.
 Finding premises.
 Information and intelligence, 
 Developing links.
 Accessing capacity building sources.

 Fundraising to diversify income.
 Communications and marketing.
 Finance and administration.
 Staff development.
 Governance and trustee training.
 Volunteer support and supervision.
 Business planning.
 Developing new activities.
 Links with similar organisations.
 Suitable and affordable premises.

 Business planning – inc. measuring impact and cost of services.
 Management and staff s development.
 Developing better links with statutory sector as well as VCS.
 Information and intelligence.
 Securing flexible funding.
 Developing new services.
 Improved access to 
 Income generation/trading (inc. private sector links).
 Fit for purpose premises.
 Consortia/joint working/mergers.
 Service specific support eg. adult/children’s social care and accessing public sector 

 procurement opportunities.
 Volunteer training, support and supervision.
 IT development.

 Links to contracts and commissioning opportunities.
 Developing income generation inc. trading.
 Increasing use of volunteers.
 Professional trustees.
 Innovation.
 IT development.

 Ability to compete against external VCS organisations and private sector for 
 LBI contracts.

 Professional trustees.
 Innovation.

 Links with Islington’s VCS and Council – eg expertise and employment opportunities 
 for residents.

Type

Tier 1
Under £10,000

Tier 2
£10k - £50k

Tier 3
£50k - £250k

Tier 4
£250k - £1m.

Tier 5
£1m +

Tier 6
Over £10m

Support Needs by Organisational Size

A common theme was that organisations find it difficult 
to know what support is available and to access it at 
the right time. Smaller groups in particular are looking 
for more 1:1 advice and help with filling in fundraising 
applications, and more opportunities to network and 
share information with each other. They would like 
affordable space to be available for groups to share 
– desk space with meeting space and event space 
attached – close to where their communities are based

Neighbourhood Services
The concept of community based provision was 
widely supported and preferred to services centralised 
in Council buildings. Residents with the greatest needs 
are considered more likely to access support close to 
where they live. Voluntary sector providers rooted in 
neighbourhoods have an important role to play in 
putting people in touch with a broad range of services 
as well as enabling them to be engaged in what is going 
on in their local community.  

A wide range of services were suggested for 
neighbourhood delivery. Those thought to be most 
valued by residents are:

 Advice and information, especially around the 
 impacts of welfare reform, including family support. 
 Effective signposting and referral to other sources 
 of help.

 Youth and play activities – before and after school, 
 at weekends and in school holidays

 Activities for older people to  prevent isolation and 
 tackle health problems

 Employment support services

 Support for vulnerable adults including mental health

 Volunteering opportunities

Volunteering
All respondents stressed the importance of 
volunteers to their organisations and that the 
Council should support volunteering in the borough.  
Some argued that volunteering is the core ethos of 
the local voluntary sector and that the Council should 
only support groups with a good track record of using 
volunteers.

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

Appendix 2 VCS Partnership Grants Application Process and Timeframe 

Decision Making Processes: 

Detail Key Dates 

 Executive Report (VCS Grant Funding Programme 2016-2020) drafted - outlining funding streams, funding 
available and core criteria and processes.  – reviewed at regular intervals with Exec member. 

 

Ongoing until 11 
January 2016 

 Key Budget Decisions made by Executive allocating VCS Partnerships Grants Programme Funding 
 

Thursday 7th January 2016 

 Executive Report (VCS Grant Funding Programme 2016-2020) revised following above 
 

7 -10 January 2016 

 Executive meets and consider report (VCS Grant Funding Programme 2016-2020) 
 

Thursday 14 January 2016 
 

 Executive Call in period (Three Days) 
 

Tuesday 19 January 2016 

 VCS Committee Paper  (VCS Grant Funding Programme 2016-2020) submitted to Democratic Services and 
distributed 

Wednesday 13th January 
2016 

 Islington VCS Committee  (VCS Grant Funding Programme 2016-2020)  noted 
 

Monday 25 January 2016 

 VCS Committee Call in period (3 days) 
 

Thursday 28 January 2016 

 

Stage One: Applications 

Detail Key Dates 

 Finalise prospectus and assessment framework and scoring criteria 
 

Friday 15 January 2016 

 Launch Voluntary and Community Sector Partnership Grants Programme Friday 22 January 2016 
 

 Meet the VCS Development Team -  Question and Answer Session (Borough-wide Infrastructure) 
Lift Project, 45 White Lion Street, London, N1 9PW – The Angel Room 
 

Friday 29 January 2016 
10am – 12pm 

 Meet VCS Development Team – Question and Answer Session (Strategic Advice) 
 

TBC 

 Meet the VCS Development Team -  Question and Answer Session (Neighbourhood Partners) 
Lift Project, 45 White Lion Street, London, N1 9PW – The Angel Room 

Friday 29 January 2016 
2pm – 4pm 

P
age 49



2 
 

 

 Meet the VCS Development Team -  Question and Answer Session (Delivery Partners) 
Holloway Neighbourhood Group,  The Old Fire Station, 84 Mayton Street, London N7 6QT 

 

Thursday 28 January 2016 
(12pm – 2pm) 

 Meet the VCS Development Team -  Question and Answer Session (Borough-wide Infrastructure) 
Central Library, Holloway Road 
 

Wednesday 3 February 2016 
2pm – 4pm 

 Meet the VCS Development Team -  Question and Answer Session (Delivery Partners) 
Lift Project, 45 White Lion Street, London, N1 9PW – The Angel Room 
 

Thursday 4 February 2016 
(12pm – 2pm) 

 Closing Date for Stage One Applications (application window of 6 weeks) Friday 4 March  2016 
 

 Logging applications and base data Monday 7 March 2016 
 

 

Stage One: Shortlisting process 

Strategic Advice Partners 
 

 Complete Shortlisting Applications  
 Applications sent to LBI Link Officer 

Friday 11 March 2016 

 Link Officer comments/ scoring of shortlisted applications 
 

Wednesday 16 March 2016  

 Shortlisting Stakeholder Panel Meeting  
 

Friday 18 March 2016 

 

Borough-wide Partners 
 

 Complete Shortlisting Applications  
 Applications sent to LBI Link Officer 

 

Friday 11 March 2016  

 Link Officer comments/ scoring of shortlisted applications 
 

Wednesday 16 March 2016 

 Shortlisting Stakeholder Panel Meeting – Strategic Borough-wide Partners/ Volunteering Brokerage 
 

Wednesday 23 March 2016  

 

 

P
age 50



3 
 

Delivery Partners 
 

 Complete Shortlisting Applications  
 Applications sent to LBI Link Officer 

 

Friday 11 March 2016  

 Link Officer comments/ scoring of shortlisted applications 
 

Wednesday 16 March 2016 

 Shortlisting Panel Meeting – Delivery Partners 
 

Wednesday 23 March 2016  

 

Strategic Neighbourhood Partners 
 

 Complete Shortlisting Applications  
 Applications sent to LBI Link Officer 

 

Friday 11 March 2016 

 Link Officer comments/ scoring of shortlisted applications Thursday 17 March 2016 
 

 Shortlisting Stakeholder Panel Meeting – Strategic Neighbourhood Partners 
 

Thursday 24 March 2016 

 

 Report to Exec Member on outcome of shortlisting 
 

Monday 4 April 2016 

 Notify shortlisted organisations 
 

Friday 8 April 2016 

 

Stage Two: Application Process.  

Detail Key Dates 

 Stage Two – Meet shortlisted organisations  
(VCS Dev Officers to set dates and book rooms to meet organisations) 

Monday 11 April 2016 

 End of Stage Two Friday 29 April 2016 
 

 Closing Date for Resubmitted/ Revised Proposals  
(Organisations have an option to resubmit their applications within two weeks of their meetings) 

Friday 13 May 2016 

 Recommendations sent to (Special) VCS Committee TBC  
 

 

P
age 51



4 
 

Formal Approvals of recommendations:  

Detail Key Dates 

 VCS Committee TBC  
 

 End of Call in Period TBC 
 

 

Stage Three: Notification of Grant Awards (Dates dependant on date of VCS Committee)  

Detail Key Dates 

 Send approval letter and SLA to successful organisations – 
(One week to sign and return SLA) 

Two days after VCS 
Committee’s Call in Period 

 Send letter to unsuccessful organisations Two days after VCS 
Committee’s Call in Period 

 Notify current funded organisation that their agreements will end Thursday 30 June 2016   Two days after VCS 
Committee’s Call in Period 

 Assign organisations to VCS Development Officers One week after VCS 
Committee’s Call in Period 

 VCS Development Officers to arrange meetings with successful organisations to discuss their proposal One week after VCS 
Committee’s Call in Period 

 

Special Date:  

Detail Key Dates 

 Start delivery of new programmes TBC 

 

P
age 52



 

Page 1 of 1 

Appendix 3: Grant Awards through the 2011-2015 VCS Grants Programme 
 

Organisation PP&C Grant Award (per year)  

Algerian British Connection £10,000 

All Change Arts £20,000 

Almeida Theatre Company  £10,000 

Angel Community Canal Boat Trust £18,200 

Arab Advice Bureau £25,000 

Every Voice (Islington BME Forum) £20,000 

BSB Somali Arts & Education £5,000 

Caxton House Community Centre  £30,000 

Creative Islington  £40,000 

Disability Action in Islington £40,000 

Eritrean Community in the UK £20,000 

Finsbury Park Community Hub (Andover CC) £60,000 

Finsbury Park Mosque £20,000 

Hanley Crouch Community Association £60,000 

Highbury Roundhouse £50,000 

Highbury Vale Blackstock Trust (Elizabeth House) £30,000 

Hilldrop Area Community Association £25,000 

Holloway Mosque £10,000 

Hornsey Lane Estate Community Association  £25,000 

Islington Community Network (Hosted by VAI) £20,000 

Islington Chinese Association £15,000 

Islington Pensioners Forum £5,000 

Here To (Isledon Partnership) £55,000 

Islington Arts Factory £15,000 

Islington Bangladesh Association £25,000 

Islington Faiths Forum £25,000 

Islington Link-Up £10,000 

Islington Refugee Forum £20,000 

Islington Somali Community £25,000 

Kurdish & Middle Eastern Women Organisation £10,000 

Light Project Pro International £15,000 

Mildmay Community Partnership £60,000 

Muslim Welfare House £20,000 

Octopus Community Network £20,000 

Peel Institute £40,000 

Queensland Multi-Media Arts Centre (QMMAC) £10,000 

Rowan Arts £15,000 

Somali Speakers Association £15,000 

St Luke’s Parochial Trust £60,000 

Tollington Parish (StMark’s Church) £20,000 

Turkish Education Group £10,000 

IMECE Turkish Speaking Women’s Group £20,000 

Voluntary Action Islington £40,000 

Whittington Park Community Association £60,000 

BVMO £15,000 

TOTAL £1,163,200 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 Proposed Islington VCS Partnership Grants Programme Funding Allocations 

VCS Partnership Grants Programme        
2016-2020                                             
Proposed Funding profile 

Source Proposed Grant Pot 
Range

Sum PP&C 
Grant 
Award

 No. of Orgs 
Potentially 
funded

Maximum Award Average 
Award

% of Strands 
1-4

% of overall 
Pot 

1
Strategic Partners - Borough Wide 
Infrastructure VCS £170,000 - £210,0000 180,000 8 35,000 22500 17.1% 7%

2  Strategic Partner – Volunteering VCS £30,000-£40,000 35,000 1 35,000 35000 3.3% 1%
3 Strategic Partners – Neighbourhoods VCS £475,000-£525,000 475,000 10 50,000 47500 45.2% 19%
4 Delivery Partners VCS £320,000-£400,000 360,000 20 20,000 18000 34.3% 15%

Subtotal 1,050,000 100.0%
Source Contribution to fund Sum PP&C 

Grant 
Award

 No. of Orgs 
Potentially 
funded

Maximum Award Average 
Award

% of Strands 
1-4

% of overall 
Pot 

5 Strategic Partners - Advice VCS 1,165,000
Housing 146,000
HASS 95,000

Subtotal 1,406,000
Total 2,456,000 5 £200,000-£530,000 0 100.0% 57%

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 1 

Appendix 5 : Islington Advice Model 
 
 
 
 

Direct Agency/Partner 

Referral 
Primary access channel  Access & Outreach 

Outreach and Access Services 
Initial Assessment & Referral based on a Common Assessment Framework 

Generalist through to 
Specialist Advice with 
integrated service offer 

Advice on full range of issues 
Limited casework 
No tribunal representation 

Specialist Advice and 
Representation through to 

litigation 
Complex case work 
Representation at tribunal or 
court hearings 
Specialist advice areas (e.g. 
immigration and asylum) 

Triage/Initial Advice  
Diagnosis of client's enquiry 

Some information and assistance 
Referral to other support as necessary 

Development of a common case management system 

Resident Access 

Integrated service offer  
(IMax, IWork, Housing) 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	FINAL LIF Appendix A VCSC 15 12 15

	B1 Local Initiatives Fund awards
	LIF Appendix A VCSC 25.1.16 v2

	B2 Discretionary rate relief awards
	Criteria Appendix A (25 January 2016)

	B3 London Boroughs Grants Committee: levy 2016/17
	C1 Islington Voluntary and Community Sector Partnership grants programme 2016 - 2020
	Appendix 1 Towards a Fairer Islington VCS Strategy 2016-2020
	Appendix 2 VCS  Process and Timeframe
	Appendix 3 Grant Awards through the 2011-2015 VCS Grants Programme
	Appendix 4 Islington VCS Partnership Grants Programme Funding Allocation
	Sheet1

	Appendix 5 Islington Advice Model 2016-2020


